Océ User manual

Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250

Operating information



Océ-Technologies B.V.

© 2007, Océ

All rights reserved. No part of this work may be reproduced, copied, adapted, or transmitted in any form or by any means without written permission from Océ.

Océ makes no representation or warranties with respect to the contents hereof and specifically disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose.

Further, Océ reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time in the content hereof without obligation to notify any person of such revision or changes.

Trademarks

List of trademarks

Océ, VarioPrint, PRISMAaccess, PRISMAprepare, PRISMAproduction and DPlink are registered trademarks of Océ-Technologies B.V.

Xerox, DocuTech, DigiPath and FreeFlow are registered trademarks of Xerox Corporation.

Adobe and PostScript are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated.

Products in this publication are referred to by their general trade names. In most, if not all cases, these designations are claimed as trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

Table of Contents

Chapter [•]		~
Introduct	ION	9
	Indies for the Teader	10
	Available documentation	ו ו ניו
		2
Chapter 2	2	
Power in	formation 1	3
	The power modes 1	4
	Turn on the printer	17
	Shut down the printer	8
Chapter 3	3	
Overview	of the system components 2	21
	Introduction to the main system components	22
	The operator panel	24
	The operator attention light 2	27
	The output locations	29
	The paper modules	32
Chapter 4	1	
Working	with the operator panel	35
•	Introduction	36
	The dashboard	36
	The Schedule view	39
	Introduction to the 'Schedule' view	39
	Load the media	14
	Example of a workflow 4	16
	Stop a job	32
	The Jobs view	35
	Introduction to the 'Jobs' view	35
	Schedule a waiting job for printing 6	38
	Reprint a job	70
	Give priority to a scheduled job	′2
	Delete a job	′3
	Print a scheduled job later 7	'5
	Make a proof	7
	Print the job parameters	′9
	Bundle and split jobs 8	30
	Print all the jobs for which the media are available	34

Print the jobs that have a label	85
Checking and changing the job properties	87
Change the media	87
Change the number of sets	90
Change the output location.	92
Change the number of staples	94
Change the sorting method	96
Change the type of offset stacking	98
Check the first set	. 101
Shift the image	. 103
The Trays view	. 105
Introduction to the 'Trays' view	. 105
Assign the media to a paper tray	. 108
The System view	. 110
The Printer section	. 110
Introduction to the 'Printer' section	. 110
Check the status of the toner reservoirs	. 112
Check the status of the stapler cartridges	. 114
Reset the day counters.	. 115
Find the meter readings	. 117
The Setup section	. 119
Introduction to the 'Setup' section.	. 119
Work with the workflow profiles	. 121
Change the language	. 126
Change the warning time	. 128
Change the advanced media settings	. 131
Make an intermediate check print.	. 135
The Media section	. 137
Introduction to the 'Media' section	. 137
Introduction to the media handling	. 139
Add temporary media to the 'Media catalog'	. 141
Perform a media registration for standard-size media	. 143
Perform a media registration for large media	. 148
Chapter 5	
Keeping the printer running	. 155
Add toner	. 156
Finisher: Add staples	. 158
Stacker/stapler: Replace the stapler cartridge	. 163
Troubleshooting	. 164
Appendix A	
Miscellaneous	. 169
Product specifications	. 170
Reader's comment sheet	. 173

Addresses of local Océ organisations	175
--------------------------------------	-----

Chapter 1 Introduction



Notes for the reader

Introduction

This manual helps you use the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250. The manual contains a description of the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 and guidelines for its use and operation. There are also tips given to help you increase your knowledge of the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 and to help you better manage the workflow.

Definition

Attention Getters

Parts of this manual require your special attention. These parts provide important, additional information or are about the prevention of damage to your properties.

Note, Attention and Caution



Caution: A part marked with Caution contains information to prevent personal injury.

Attention: A part marked with **Attention** contains information to prevent damage to items, for example the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 or a file.

Note: A part marked with **Note** contains additional information about the correct operation of the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250.

Safety information

The safety information for this product is included in a separate user manual with the title **Safety information**. This manual is part of the documentation set that you received with your product.

Introduction to the Océ VarioPrint® 6160/6200/6250

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 series is a series of high-volume, cut-sheet printers. The printers are intended both for document printing and stream printing. The key feature of the printer is the Océ Gemini Instant Duplex Technology. This technology enables the printer to print the front side and back side of a sheet at the same time. Depending on the version, the sustained print speed, including reconditioning, ranges from 80 - 125 sheets per minute (A4 / Letter). Therefore, the printer can print 160 - 250 images per minute (A4 / Letter) when you print a 2-sided document.

This section gives a short description of the main features of the printer.

Overview of the main features

- Océ Gemini Instant Duplex Technology that enables the printing of both sides of a sheet at the same time.
- Advanced scheduling concept on the operator panel to keep the printer running.
- Load and assign the media while the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 prints.
- Support of up to 12 paper trays (total input capacity up to 13,800 sheets) and a roll feeder.
- Support of up to 3 stackers, a finisher, a stacker/stapler and other external finishers.
- Support of a large range of media, media sizes and media weights.
- Support of PS/PCL/PDF and streaming PS.
- Support of a large range of software products, for example the Océ PRISMA series, Xerox FreeFlow[™] and Xerox DigiPath[®].
- Support of RDO files via Océ DPlink.
- Support of a direct copy path from the optional Océ DS60 scanner to the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250.

Available documentation

Introduction

Océ delivers the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 with a documentation set. The documentation set contains the following:

- A CD-ROM with all the manuals mentioned below
- A hardcopy of the Safety manual
- Integrated Online Help in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 printer driver, the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor and other Océ applications.

Main Content of the User Manuals

The following table provides an overview of the main content of the user manuals.

User Manual	Main content
Operating information	 Overview of the main system components Working with the operator panel Handling and managing jobs on the operator panel Adding media, toner and staples.
Workflow	Use the Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160/6200/6250 in combination with ■ Océ PRISMAproduction [®] ■ Océ PRISMAprepare [®] ■ Océ Doc Works [®] ■ Océ DPconvert [™] ■ Océ DocSetter [®] ■ Xerox [®] DigiPath [®] ■ Xerox [®] FreeFlow [™] .
Maintenance tasks	 Replacing parts Cleaning parts Clearing a paper jam in the engine module.
Safety information	Instructions for safe useSafety data sheets.

Chapter 2 Power information



The power modes

Introduction

This section describes the main power modes of the printer. Refer to the Product safety data sheet in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Safety manual for information on power consumption.



Note: The table in this section describes, among other things, the low-power mode and the sleep mode. These modes are energy-saving modes. You can set the timers for these modes in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor on the controller. Furthermore, you can set a calendar timer in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor. The printer will then will wake up from the sleep mode at the indicated time. You can use the calendar timer to make sure that the printer is ready for use at the beginning of your working day. The printer can warm up before you start your working day. Refer to the online help on the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor for more information about these timers.

Description of the power switch and the On/Off button

The printer has the following switch and button to control the power supply.

- Power switch is located at the rear of the printer. The power switch connects and disconnects the printer to the power outlet.
- On/Off button with amber and green LEDs (b). The On/Off button is located on the engine module (see '*Introduction to the main system components*' on page 22). The On/Off button allows you to toggle between various system statuses. This is only possible if the power switch is in the '1' position and the start-up phase has been completed.

Description of the main power modes

[2] The main power modes

(1 – 2)

Power mode	Description	Status of the On/Off button じ	Status of the Hold button □ and Release button ▷
Off	The printer is completely off. The power switch is off. There is no power consumption. The system cannot receive or print jobs.	Off	Off
Starting up (divided into 2 stages)	Stage 1: After you press the power switch but before you press the On/Off button $\textcircled{0}$.	Blinking amber	Off
	Stage 2: After you press the On/Off button $\textcircled{0}$.	Continuous green	On
Stand-by mode	The printer is ready to print jobs.	Continuous green	On
Run mode	The printer is busy.	Continuous green	On
Low-power mode	The printer automatically enters the low-power mode if the printer has been in stand-by mode for a defined time during which none of the buttons were pressed. The printer wakes up when a job arrives in the list of 'Scheduled jobs' or when you press a button. The printer will start to warm up.	Continuous green	On

[2] The main power modes (2			
Power mode	Description	Status of the On/Off button ()	Status of the Hold button □ and Release button ▷
Going into sleep mode	The printer is preparing to go into sleep mode.	Blinking amber	On
Sleep mode	The printer automatically goes from low-power mode into sleep mode after a defined time. You can also put the printer into sleep mode manually. Press the On/Off button () to do this. The printer will enter sleep mode as soon as the 'Scheduled jobs' list is empty. The printer will wake up from sleep mode when you press the On/Off button () or when the calendar timer expires. The printer will also wake up when a printable job arrives in the 'Scheduled jobs' list, provided that the 'Automatic wake-up' function in the Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor is enabled.	Continuous amber	Off

Turn on the printer

Introduction

This section describes how to turn on the printer when the printer is completely off.



Note: When the printer is in sleep mode (see 'The power modes' on page 14), you must press the On/Off button 0 to wake up the printer.

Turn on the printer

- Press the power switch □ on the back of the printer. The On/Off button ∪ blinks amber while the system starts up. Wait until the operator panel asks you to press the On/Off button ∪.
- Press the On/Off button U.
 The On/Off button U is continuously green.
 The system warms up.

Shut down the printer

Introduction

This section describes how to shut down the printer completely, for such occasions as the holidays, for example.

Note: If you want to put the printer into sleep mode manually (see 'The power modes' on page 14), for example at the end of a working day, you must press the On/Off button 0. The printer will then go into sleep mode as soon as the list of 'Scheduled jobs' is empty. When the printer is in sleep mode, the On/Off button 0 is continuously amber.

Illustration

Ready				~ (¹) & &
Printer	Workflow Workflow Print New jobs to Scheduled jobs		Output	
	Workflow profile	Custom	n	
	Canguage	English (US)	Advanced Advanced media settings	None
	Warning time	 10 minutes	Intermediate check print	Ĩ
	Shut down system			
Sched	ule 🚺 Jobs	🔳 Trays	🍓 System	

[1] Shut down the printer

Shut down the printer

- 1. Press the 'System' button on the operator panel.
- **2.** Press the 'Setup' button.
- **3.** Press the 'Shut down system' button in the 'User interface' section. A dialog box asks you to confirm that you really want to shut down the printer.

4. Press 'Yes'.

A message indicates when the shutdown will begin. Wait until the following has happened.

- The Hold button \square and the Release button \triangleright are off
- The On/Off button 🕖 blinks amber
- The operator panel screen is off.
- 5. Press the power switch 🕞 on the back of the printer.

Chapter 3 Overview of the system components



Introduction to the main system components

Introduction

The following illustration shows the main system components. The table describes the main components. Please follow the links in the table for comprehensive information.



[2] The main system components

The main system components

[3] The main system components

(1 - 2)

	Component	Function
1	Operator panel	The operator panel helps you with your daily work, for example the scheduling of the jobs. Furthermore, the operator panel helps you to solve errors or perform maintenance tasks (see <i>'The operator panel' on page 24</i>).
2	Operator attention light	The operator attention light enables you to check the status of the system from a distance (see ' <i>The</i> <i>operator attention light</i> ' <i>on page 27</i>).
3	Roll feeder (optional)	A roll feeder is an optional device that adds paper input capacity to your printer. When you use a roll feeder, you can only use 1 or 2 paper modules. A combination of 3 paper modules and a roll feeder is not possible. The operator panel displays the roll feeder and gives feedback about the status of the roll feeder. For example whether the roll is full or empty. Please refer to the documentation of the roll feeder manufacturer for more information, for example about replacing an empty roll.

[3] The main system components (2		
	Component	Function
4	Paper module	The paper module contains 4 paper trays. The paper trays contain the media that will be printed. The default configuration of the system contains 1 paper module. You can add 1 or 2 more paper modules to the default configuration to increase the media input capacity (see ' <i>The paper modules' on page 32</i>).
5	Engine module	The engine module contains the components that print the media. Access to the engine module is only required when a paper jam occurs or when maintenance is required. The doors at the left-hand side and right-hand side of the engine module give access to the toner units (see 'Add toner' on page 156).
6	Stacker	The stacker is the output location of a default configuration. The system supports up to 3 stackers <i>The output locations on page 29</i> .
7	Finisher (optional)	The finisher on top of the stacker is an optional output location for the print jobs. The finisher can staple the jobs <i>The output locations on page 29</i> .
8	Stacker/stapler (optional)	The stacker/stapler is an optional output location for the print jobs <i>The output locations on</i> <i>page 29</i> . The stacker/stapler supports a large number of media sizes <i>Product specifications on</i> <i>page 170</i> .

. :÷.

The operator panel

Introduction

The operator panel is a touch screen panel. You must touch the buttons on the operator panel to access the various functions. The operator panel is divided into 4 main views. The taskbar at the bottom of the screen contains the buttons that give access to the 4 main views. Furthermore, the operator panel has 2 hardkeys (\square and \triangleright) at the bottom of the panel.

This section gives an overview of the main keys and buttons of the operator panel.

i

Note: You can clean the screen of the operator panel with a 50% mix of water and isopropyl alcohol (K2). Use a lint-free cloth. Always put the cleaner onto the cloth and not directly on the screen.

Illustration



[3] The operator panel

The main components of the operator panel

[4] The main components of the operator panel

(1 – 2)

	Component	Function
1	Hold key 🗆	 Put the printer on hold Stop printing after a set Stop printing as soon as possible (see <i>'Stop a job' on page 62</i>).
2	Release key ▷	 Allow the printer to print Resume printing when the printer is on hold.

	Component	Function
3	'Schedule' button	Access the 'Schedule' view (see 'Introduction to the 'Schedule' view' on page 39).
4	'Jobs' button	Access the 'Jobs' view (see 'Introduction to the 'Jobs' view' on page 65).
5	'Trays' button	Access the 'Trays' view (see 'Introduction to the 'Trays' view' on page 105).
6	'System' button	Access the 'System' view (see 'Introduction to the 'Printer' section' on page 110) (see 'Introduction to the 'Setup' section' on page 119) (see 'Introduction to the 'Media' section' on page 137)

[4] The main components of the operator panel

The operator attention light

Introduction

The operator attention light informs you about the status of the system. To improve productivity, the system can warn you before the printer stops. You can set the warning time on the operator panel (see '*Change the warning time' on page 128*). The operator attention light contains 3 lights (red, orange and green) that indicate the current status of the system. The colors of the lights match the status currently indicated on the operator panel. For example, if operator interaction is required soon, both the dashboard (see '*The dashboard' on page 36*) and the operator attention light will display an orange warning. The dashboard displays a message with the required action.

This section describes the meaning of the colors of the operator attention light.



[4] The Operator Attention Light

Status colors

[5] The colors of the operator attention light

(1 - 2)

Color	Description
Red	The printer has stopped, for example because a required media type is not available or an error has occurred. Operator attention is required now.
Orange	The printer will stop soon, for example, because an output location is almost full. The orange light lights up when the printer reaches the warning time. Operator attention is required soon.

i] The colors of the operator attention light (2 –		
Color	Description	
Green	The printer is busy printing. The printer can print longer than the defined warning time. Operator attention is not required.	
All lights off	The printer is idle. There are no jobs scheduled for printing.	

The output locations

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 supports several output locations for the printed jobs. The default configuration of your printer contains a stacker and the system output. The finisher, including the finisher upper output, and the stacker/stapler are optional output locations. Furthermore, you can connect several optional external finishers to the printer.



Note: *You need the optional finisher, the optional stacker/stapler or another optional external finisher to staple the jobs.*

Illustration



[5] The output locations

Overview of the output locations

[6] Description of the output locations

(1 – 2)

	Component	Description
1	'Stacker'	The stacker is the main output location of a default Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160/6200/6250 configuration. The stacker capacity is 6,000 sheets, in 2 stacks of 3,000 sheets each (based on media of 80 g/m ² or 20 lb. bond). The stacker does not contain stapler cartridges. Therefore, the stacker cannot be the output location for jobs that require staples.
2	'System output'	 The system output is the output location for the following prints. Error prints Configuration reports Job tickets The test sheets for the media registration. Make sure that you regularly remove the sheets from the system output.
3	'Finisher'	 The optional finisher contains the following output trays. 3 Output trays 1 Upper output (see no. 4 below) The finisher contains 2 stapler cartridges to staple the jobs. The 3 output trays can receive A4, Letter and similar media sizes. Stapled jobs (A4, Letter and similar media sizes only) go into the output trays. The total capacity of the output trays is 3,700 sheets (media of 80 g/m²) (see '<i>Product specifications' on page 170</i>).
4	'Finisher upper output'	 The finisher upper output is part of the finisher. The upper output receives the following media. A3, Ledger and similar large media sizes Jobs with mixed media sizes that contain A3, Ledger or similar large media sizes. The capacity of the finisher upper output is 500 sheets (media of 80 g/m²). Note: The upper output does not contain stapler cartridges. Therefore, the upper output cannot be the output location for jobs that require staples.

[6] C	[6] Description of the output locations (2 -		
	Component	Description	
5	'Stacker/stapler'	The stacker/stapler contains 1 stapler cartridge to staple the jobs. The stapler cartridge can staple your document with 1 or 2 staples. The stacker/stapler can stack and staple various media sizes. The device supports the stapling of mixed media sizes, as long as the width of the media is the same. The capacity of the lower tray is 2,000 sheets (media of 80 g/m ²) <i>Product specifications on page 170</i> .	
		<i>i</i> Note: <i>The stacker/stapler does not support the stapling of tab sheets.</i>	
6	'Stacker/stapler upper output'	The upper output is the upper tray of the stacker/stapler. The capacity of the upper output is 250 sheets (media of 80 g/m^2).	

The paper modules

Introduction

The paper trays contain the media that are required for the print jobs. The default configuration of the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 contains 1 paper module with 4 paper trays. You can add 1 or 2 more paper modules to the default configuration. Then the total number of paper trays is extended to 8 or 12 respectively. You can find more information about the capacities of the paper trays and the supported media size in the appendix of this Operating information (see '*Product specifications' on page 170*).

This section describes the control panel on the paper modules.

Note: You can use the control panel on the paper modules to open the paper trays and load the media. However, the recommended way to open the paper trays and assign the media is via the 'Schedule' view (see 'Example of a workflow' on page 46). You can also open the paper trays and/or assign the media via the 'Trays' view (see 'Assign the media to a paper tray' on page 108).

Illustration



[6] The control panel on the paper modules

The control panel

Each paper module contains a control panel next to the upper paper tray. The control panel consists of 4 sections that correspond with the 4 paper trays. Each section displays the current filling level of the corresponding paper tray. Furthermore, the control panel indicates whether or not the media in the paper tray is assigned. The following table describes the various parts of the control panel.

Number	Description
1	The LEDs indicate the current amount of sheets in the corresponding paper tray. Each lit-up LED indicates the presence of about 100 sheets (based on media of 80 g/m ² or 20 lb bond).
2	Press the button to open the corresponding paper tray. You can only open 1 paper tray at a time.
3	When the check mark is green, the media in the paper tray is defined. The system knows which media is in the paper tray.
4	When the arrows are red, the media in the paper tray is not defined. The system does not know which media is in the paper tray. The 'Trays' view on the operator panel indicates that no media is assigned to the paper tray.
5	 The 'Not assigned' button. This button applies to the paper tray in which you have just placed the media. You can press the 'Not assigned' button when you load a new media type into a paper tray without defining this media type on the operator panel first. Then the printer cannot accidentally use the media in this paper tray before the media is correctly defined on the operator panel. You can define the media type in the 'Trays' view on the operator panel later (see 'Assign the media to a paper tray' on page 108). Note: Make sure that the paper tray is open when you press the 'Not assigned' button.

Chapter 4 Working with the operator panel



Introduction

The dashboard

Introduction

The dashboard is the upper blue part of the operator panel. The dashboard is always visible, irrespective of the current view (see '*The operator panel*' on page 24). The dashboard gives the following feedback.

- The status of the system
- The current process
- Instructions for the operator
- The status of the supplies
- The status of the external finisher, if applicable
- Whether maintenance is required.

Illustration

The following illustration shows the dashboard while the printer is busy. The vertical status bar is green. No action is required.



The following illustration shows the dashboard while the printer is busy. The vertical status bar is orange. Next to the status bar, the dashboard displays a message that indicates which action is required soon.


The parts of the dashboard

[8] The dashboard

(1 – 2)

Number	Function
1	Display the status of the system, for example 'Initializing', 'Printing' or 'Printing will stop'. Each status message can have a sub-message with additional information.
2	 Display the file name of the current job (for document printing) or current stream (for stream printing). Furthermore, the progress of the current job is displayed. For document printing, the counter can display the following information. Set X of Y Page X of Y Sheet X of Y or Sheet X. X represents the current status of the print job. Y represents the total number of sets, pages or sheets of a print job. When the sorting method for a job is set to 'sort by set', and a set contains at least 40 pages, then the dashboard displays the set count (Set X of Y) and the page count (Page X of Y) for the set. When a set contains less than 40 pages, then the dashboard only displays the set count (Set X of Y). When the sorting method for a job is set to 'sort by page', or when you print stream jobs, then the dashboard only displays a sheet count.

[8] The dashboard	(2 – 2)
Number	Function
3	 Display the action that you must do now or soon. The colors of the vertical status bar on the left-hand side match the colors of the operator attention light (see '<i>The operator attention light' on page 27</i>). When the color is orange or red, a message indicates the required action. Orange means that action is required soon. How long before an upcoming action the operator panel starts to display the message depends on the defined warning time (see '<i>Change the warning time' on page 128</i>). Red means that action is required now.
	<i>i</i> Note: The operator panel can display only one message at a time. If there are more messages, the operator panel displays the first required or most important message.
4	 Display the status of the toner reservoirs (see '<i>Check the status of the toner reservoirs' on page 112</i>) and the stapler cartridges (see '<i>Check the status of the stapler cartridges' on page 114</i>). Display the status of the external finisher, if applicable. Display a warning that maintenance is required. If maintenance is required soon, the maintenance icon becomes orange . If maintenance is required now, the maintenance icon becomes red .
	Note: Only key operators who received the special Océ maintenance training are allowed to do maintenance tasks.

The Schedule view

Introduction to the 'Schedule' view

Introduction

The 'Schedule' is your daily planning board for print jobs. The 'Schedule' helps you to keep the Océ VarioPrint® 6160/6200/6250 running.

This section shows and describes the main parts of the 'Schedule'. You can find more information about the practical use of the 'Schedule' in the next section (see 'Example of a workflow' on page 46).



Note: *The descriptions of the colors of the bars and the indication of the required* amount of sheets are only valid for document printing. For streaming jobs \mathfrak{A}_{1} , all the bars remain grey until the paper trays are empty or the output locations are full. Then the printer stops and the bars become red. Furthermore, the media toolbar does not indicate the required amount of sheets.

The 'Schedule' view



[9] The 'Schedule' view

1. The jobs pane

The jobs pane shows the jobs on a timeline. The width of the job corresponds to the (remaining) print time. A vertical line separates the jobs. The vertical line moves to the left as the printing of a job progresses.

An icon and the job name represent a job. The icon indicates the state of the job, for example printing **A**.

Furthermore, the i icon indicates the stop moments of the printer. For example, when the setting 'Confirm start of job' in the workflow profiles (see 'Work with the workflow profiles' on page 121) is set to 'On' or when you use the 'Stop after job' function.

2. The 'Required media' pane

The 'Required media' pane displays the media that are required for each scheduled job. For each required media, the media properties are displayed (see '*Introduction to the 'Trays' view' on page 105*). The bars show the availability of the media. The bars can have the following colors.

Color of the bar	Description
Green	The required media is available.
Orange	The media is required in the future, but not available then. For example because the paper trays do not contain sufficient sheets of the required media.
Yellow	The system cannot determine the exact number of sheets that is available in the paper trays.
Red	The media is required now, but not available. The job can only start when you load the required media.

[9] The colors of the bars

When you print small jobs, the bars for these jobs may not be completely visible. To prevent that you do not see the status of these small jobs, the operator panel can show the following images.



Note: When you set the zoom control (5) to a shorter time-scale, in most cases the operator panel will display bars for these small jobs.

Image	Description
	Green. The required media is available.
	Orange. The media is required in the future, but not available then. For example because the paper trays do not contain sufficient sheets of the required media.
	Red. The media is required now, but not available. The job can only start when you load the required media.

[10] The possible display of small jobs

3. The media toolbar

The media toolbar displays the following information for the media that is selected in the 'Required media' pane. Furthermore, the media type toolbar contains the 'Load' button to load and assign the required media.

Icon	Description						
	The list of 'Required media' shows the required media for the scheduled jobs. When the paper module indicator is completely grey, this means that not one of the required media is available in the paper trays.						
	The list of 'Required media' shows the required media for the scheduled jobs. When a paper tray is highlighted in green, the highlighted paper tray contains a media that is required by one of the scheduled jobs.						
	The list of 'Required media' shows the required media for the scheduled jobs. When a paper tray is highlighted in blue, the highlighted paper tray contains the media that is also highlighted in blue in the list of 'Required media'.						
1200 200 200	A job can require more sheets of a certain media than is available in the paper trays. This indicator indicates the number of extra needed sheets. If no horizontal lines are visible, the paper trays contain enough sheets to print the job.						
130 200 300	 A job can require more sheets of a certain media than is available in the paper trays. This indicator indicates the number of extra needed sheets. Each horizontal line indicates the need for about 100 sheets. Here, about 800 extra sheets are required. Note: The indicator also indicates the number of sheets that is required when a media is not available in the paper trays. 						
	A job can require more sheets of a certain media than is available in the paper trays. This indicator indicates the number of extra needed sheets. Each horizontal line indicates the need for about 100 sheets. Here, more than 1,500 extra sheets are required.						

4. The output locations pane

The output locations pane displays the output locations that are required for the scheduled jobs. The bars show the availability of the output locations. The bars can be the following colors.

Color of the bar	Description					
Green	The output location is required and available.					
Orange	The output location is required in the future, but not available then. For example, because the output location will be full soon.					
Red	The output location is required now, but not available. For example, because the output location is full.					

[12] The colors of the bars

5. The zoom control

The zoom control enables you to adjust the time scale visible in the 'Schedule'. When you press the zoom button, a drop-down list appears. Then you can select the desired time scale.

Load the media

Introduction

This section describes how to load the media into a paper tray. When you load the media via the 'Load' button in the 'Schedule', the paper tray is automatically assigned to the correct media.

When you load and assign the media via the 'Assign' button in the 'Trays' view, you must assign the paper tray to the loaded media manually.



Note: When no external finisher is connected to the printer, you must put all the media types face up and header up into the paper trays. The tabs of tab sheets must be aligned with the right-hand side. If an external finisher is connected to the printer, you may have to put the media into the paper trays in a different way. Refer to the documentation of the external finisher for more information about how to place the media.

When to do

- The 'Schedule' displays a red bar next to a required media. The red bar indicates that a scheduled job now requires a media that is not available in the paper trays.
- The 'Schedule' displays an orange bar next to a required media. The orange bar indicates that a scheduled job requires media which is either not available in the paper trays or which is available, but not in sufficient quantity to finish the job.
- The current job requires more of the same media than is currently loaded in the paper trays. You can add more of the required media into another paper tray.
- You already want to load and assign media that are required for the next job (work ahead).



Attention: Always put the stack of media aligned with the left-hand side of the paper guides inside the paper trays, as indicated on the sticker inside the paper trays.

Illustration



[19] The sticker inside the paper trays indicates how to load the media

Load the media

- **1.** Put a small stack of media into the paper tray.
- **2.** Press the green handle on the right-hand guide and push the guide against the edge of the media.
- **3.** Turn the green knob to adjust the front guide and the rear guide.
- 4. Put the rest of the media on top of the small stack.

Note: If you want to assign the media later you must press the 'Not assigned' button (see 'The paper modules' on page 32), as indicated on the right-hand side of the sticker.

Example of a workflow

Introduction

This section gives an example of a workflow for 3 jobs that were sent to the list of 'Waiting jobs' and must be printed. The procedure is divided into the following sub-procedures.

- Move the waiting jobs to the 'Scheduled jobs' and print the first job.
- Prepare the second job for printing (work ahead)
- Prepare the third job for printing (work ahead).

Job requirements

[i]

The example in this section is based on the following jobs and job properties.

Job number	Job name	Required media
1	Job # 1	 Océ Tab Cards, A4, 80 g/m² Océ Red Label, A4, 80 g/m²
2	Job # 2	Océ Black Label, A3, 80 g/m ²
3	Job # 3	Océ Green Label, A4, 120 g/m ²

[13] Overview of the job properties

Note: *Only Océ Red Label is available in one of the paper trays. The other media are not yet available.*

Illustration

Ready					b			°°°
Dobs	Stop after job	IS≪68 Move	୍ଷି Proof	Ticket	В	43 undle	↓ Select	•
Printed jobs		Waitin	ng jobs				3 jobs, 0 sele	ected.
Job	Pages Sets Submitted Durati	ion Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration	
			Job # 1 Prepress Department	4	250	2006/06/26 11:36:15	0:08	
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Durati	on S	Job # 2 Prepress Department	1	500	2006/06/26 11:37:09	0:04	
			Job # 3 Prepress Department	1	500	2006/06/26 11:38:02	0:04	
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	Sys	stem				

[20] The starting point

Move the waiting jobs to the scheduled jobs

1. From the list of 'Waiting jobs', select the jobs you want to print. Press the jobs one by one or press 'All' to select all the waiting jobs at once.

Ready						
Dobs	Stop after job	Move	Proof	Ticket	Bundle	Select
Printed jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Dura	ion Job	ting jobs	Pages Se	ts ts	All
			Job # 1 Prepress Department	4 2	250 4	None
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Dura	ion	Job # 2 Prepress Department	1 5	500 4 📉	Invert selection
			Job # 3 Prepress Department	1 5	500 4 🚯	Jobs with available media
						 Jobs with label
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	S)	/stem		

- [21] Select the jobs
- **2.** Press 'Move' to schedule the selected jobs for printing. The selected jobs are moved to the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

Note: *The dashboard already indicates that Océ Tab Cards, which is required for the first job, is not available.*

Stopped	Job # Set 0 d	1 of 250			Load	: 'Océ Tab Card:	s', A4 🗅, t	ab, 80 g			***
Dobs	Sto	p after job	De	X lete	M	De Calendaria de	a Proof	Ticket	Bun] ⊒ dle	↓ Select
Printed jobs Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Waiting jobs Job		Pages	Sets S	ubmitted	Duration
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	3 jobs, 0 s	elected.						
Prepress Department Job # 2 Prepress Department	4	250 500	2006/06/26 11:36:15 2006/06/26 11:37:09	0:08							
Job # 3 Prepress Department	1	500	2006/06/26 11:38:02	0:04							
Schedule		Jobs			Tray	s		System			

[22] 3 Scheduled jobs

 Press 'Schedule' to view the list of scheduled jobs (horizontally) and the list of the media that are required for these jobs (vertically). The 'Schedule' view appears.

Stopped Job # Set 0 d	1 f 250	Load: 'Océ Tab Cards'	, A4 🗅 , tab, 80 g	
© Schedule	'00 '02 '04 '06	5 '08 '10 '12 '14	4 '16 '18 '20 '22	'24 '26 '28 '30
200 200 300 Load	Job # 1	🔊 Job # 2 🔊 Jo	b # 3	<i>L</i>
Required media				
Océ Tab Cards A4 🗅 , tab, 80 g				
Océ Red Label A4 D, 80 g				
Océ Black Label A3 🕒, 80 g				
Océ Green Label A 4 D, 120 g				
2				
Required output locations				
l Finisher				
		4 4		
Schedule Schedule	lobs	Trays	🍓 System	

[23] The 'Schedule' view

The colored bars mean the following (see '*Introduction to the 'Schedule' view' on page 39*).

- The red bar indicates that Océ Tab Cards is not available in the paper trays. You
 must load Océ Tab Cards to start the job.
- The green bars indicate that Océ Red Label and the required output locations are available.
- The orange bars indicate that the media for the next jobs are not available, but not yet required (Océ Black Label is required in 8 minutes, while Océ Green Label is required in 12 minutes).
- 4. Press Océ Tab Cards.

The indicator in the toolbar now indicates the required number of sheets for this media type.

5. Press 'Load' to open the 'Load media' window.

Stopped Job Set C	# 1 of 250	Load: 'Océ Tab Cards	', A4 🗅, tab, 80 g	
() Schedule	'00 '02 '04 '06	'08 '10 '12 '1	4 '16 '18 '20	'22 '24 '26 '28 '30
1000 1000 000 = Load	Job # 1	Job # 2	ob # 3	Q
Required media				
Océ Tab Cards				
Océ Red Label				
Océ Black Label				
Océ Green Label A4 🗅, 120 g				
Required output locations				
E Finisher				
Stacker				
Schedule	Jobs	🗐 Trays	🍓 System	

[24] Select the unavailable media

The 'Load media' window appears. At the top, the window displays the name, the properties and the amount of the required media. Now you can load and assign the required media.

Stopped Job # 1	Load: 'Océ Tab Cards', A4 🗅, tab, 80 g
Set 0 01 230	권 Load media
0 Schedule	Required media Amount 8 '20 '22 '24 '26 '28 '30
200 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201	D Océ Tab Cards 1000 A A D, tab, 80 g 500
Required media	j Select a tray.
Océ Tab Cards A4 🗅, tab, 80 g	
0cé Red Label A 4 D, 80 g	
Océ Black Label A3 D, 80 g	1 Océ Top Costed
Océ Green Label	2 Dcé Recycled Paper ALD, So g
	3
	Ccé Red Label A 4 D, 80 g
	4
Required output locations	Océ Standard Label
Finisher	A3 🗅 , 80 g
Stacker	
Schedule Jobs	OK Cancel tem

[25] Load the media

6. First select the paper tray where you want to put the Océ Tab Cards. Select for example tray 1, because that paper tray contains media that no scheduled job currently needs. Then press 'OK'.

Stopped Job # 1 Set 0 of 250	Load: 'Océ Tab Cards', A4 🗅, tab, 80	9 📾 🖚 🖞 🔉 🔊
Schedule 00 300 100 300 100 300 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	Request media Amount Dec Tab Cards xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	8 ¹ /20 ¹ /22 ¹ /24 ¹ /26 ¹ /28 ¹ /30
Required output locations Finisher Stacker Schedule Jobs	Ocć Standard Label A3 Dz, 80 g OK Cancel	tem

[26] Select a tray

The following occurs.

- Paper tray 1 opens.
- The media name is changed into Océ Tab Cards. This indicates that Océ Tab Cards will be assigned to paper tray 1.
- A dotted line indicates that the paper tray is open.

On hold Job # 1 Set 0 of 250	Load: 'Océ Tab Cards', A4 🗅, tab, 80 g 권 Load media	
O Schedule 00 200 200 200 200 200 Load Required media Load Océ Tab Cards A4 D, 180 g A4 D, 180 g Deé Black Label A5 D, 80 g Océ Green Label A4 D, 120 g	Required media Amount. Ocć Tab Cards 100 000 A A D, tab, 80 g 00 i Load the media and close the tray. Image: Control of the contr	
Required output locations Finisher Stacker Schedule Jobs	Océ Standard Label A3 Cb, 80 g OK Cancel	tem

[27] Press 'OK' to open the paper tray

- 7. Load the Océ Tab Cards into tray 1(see 'Load the media' on page 44).
- **8.** Close the paper tray.

The window disappears. The red bar in the 'Schedule' turns green. The warning message in the dashboard disappears. The printing starts because the required media is available now.

Printing Jol Se	# 1 0 of 250	Upcoming: Load 'Océ	Black Label', A3 🕒, 80 g	
© Schedule	'00 '02 '04 '06	'08 '10 '12 '1	4 '16 '18 '20 '22	'24 '26 '28 '30
1000 1000 300 Load	Job # 1	∑ Job # 2 ∑ Jo	ob # 3	9
Required media				
Océ Tab Cards A4 🗅, 80 g				
Océ Red Label				
Océ Black Label				
Océ Green Label				
Required output locations				
E Finisher				
Stacker				
Schedule	Jobs	🗐 Trays	🍓 System	

[28] Job 1 is printing

The printer can now print unattended for 8 minutes, as indicated on the timeline. Then the printer stops because the second job needs a media type that is not available (Océ Black Label). However, you can extend the unattended printing time. To do this, you must load the required media for the second job.

Prepare the second job for printing (work ahead)

Note: The second job requires Océ Black Label paper, which is not yet available in the paper trays. To prepare the job for printing, you must load the Océ Black Label paper into a tray that is not in use. The following steps describe the procedure.

1. Press Océ Black Label.

|i|

2. Press 'Load' to open the 'Load media' window.

Printing Job # Set 0 (1 of 250	Upcoming: Load 'Océ E	3lack Label', A3 🕒, 80 g	
() Schedule	'00 '02 '04 '06	'08 '10 '12 '14	'16 '18 '20 '22	'24 '26 '28 '30
200 2 200 2 200 2 200 2 Load	Job # 1	job # 2 jol	b#3	<u>с</u>
Required media				
Océ Tab Cards				
Océ Red Label				
Océ Black Label A3 🕒, 80 g				
Océ Green Label				
1	J			
Required output locations				
i Finisher				
Schedule	Jobs	🗐 Trays	🍓 System	

[29] Select the unavailable media

3. Select the paper tray in which you want to put the Océ Black Label. Select, for example, tray 4 because that paper tray contains media that no scheduled job currently needs. You can see that tray 4 is not in use because that tray does not have the green "in use" icon . Then press 'OK'.

Printing Job # 1 Set 0 of 250	Upcoming: Load 'O	cé Black Label', A3	3 🗅, 80 g			***
O Schedule 00 im im im im im im im im im im im im im im im im im océ Tab Cards im im Ac D, so g im im	Required media Deć Black Label A 3 D, 80 g Press OK to open the tray. Deć Tab Cards A 4 D, 80 g C 6 Recycled Paper A 4 D, 80 g	Amount 1200 120	3 '20	22 24	'26 '28	· '30
Required output locations Finisher Stacker Schedule	0cé Red Label 4 0cé Standard Label A3 Ch, 80 g	Cancel	tem			

[30] Load the media

The paper tray opens. The tray is assigned to the required media.

4. Load the Océ Black Label into tray 4.

Note: If you select a paper tray that is currently in use, the current job will stop. The operator panel will ask you for the media that you just replaced.

5. Close the paper tray. The window disappears. The second job is ready for printing.

Printing Job # Set 0 (1 of 250			
O Schedule 200 200 300 Load Required media Oct Tab Cards A4 D, 80 g	'00 '02 '04 '06	108 110 12 14	<u>'16 '18 '20 '22</u>	'24 '25 '28 '30
Ocć Red Label A4 D, 80 g Ocć Black Label A3 D, 80 g Ocć Green Label A4 D, 120 g				
Required output locations				
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🐁 System	

[31] The second job is ready for printing

The printer can now print unattended for 11 minutes, as indicated on the time line. Then the printer stops because the third job needs a media type that is not available (Océ Green Label). However, you can extend the unattended printing time. To do this, you must load the required media for the third job.

Prepare the third job for printing

[i]

Note: The third job requires Océ Green Label paper, which is not yet available in the paper trays. To prepare the job for printing, you must load the Océ Green Label paper into a tray that is not in use. The following steps describe the procedure.

- **1.** Press Océ Green Label.
- 2. Press 'Load' to open the 'Load media' window.

Printing Job # Set 0 i	1 of 250				
© Schedule	00 '02 '04	'06 '08 '10	'12 '14	'16 '18 '20 '2	2 '24 '26 '28 '30
1000 1000 1000 Load	Job # 1	🛐 Job # 2	🚺 Job # 3		Q
Required media					
Océ Tab Cards					
Océ Red Label					
Océ Black Label A3 🕞, 80 g					
Océ Green Label At 🗅, 120 g					
1					
Required output locations					
ii Finisher					
Stacker					
Schedule Schedule	Jobs	🔳 Trays	ą	System	

[32] Select the unavailable media

3. Select the paper tray in which you want to put the Océ Green Label. Select, for example, tray 2 because that paper tray is the only paper tray that is currently not in use. You can see that tray 2 is not in use because that tray does not have the green "in use" icon **S**. Then press 'OK'.

Printing Job #	# 1 of 250	² Load media					***
O Schedule xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx		Required media CcE Green Label At D, 120 g Press CK to open the tray.	Amount 1500 500	8 '20	'22	*24 *25	"28 "30 Q
A3 (D), 80 g Océ Green Label A4 (D), 120 g		Ccé Tab Cards Ar (D, tab, 80 g) Ccé Recycled Paper Ar (D, tab, 80 g) Ccé Red Label Ar (D, tab, 80 g) Cocé Red Label Ar (D, 80 g)					
Required output locations Finisher Stacker Schedule	Jobs	Océ Black Label	Cancel	tem			

[33] Load the media

The paper tray opens.

i

4. Load the Océ Green Label into tray 2.

Note: If you select a paper tray that is currently in use, the current job will stop. The operator panel will ask you for the media that you just replaced.

 Close the paper tray. The window disappears. The third job is ready for printing.

Printing Job # Set 0	• 1 of 250			
© Schedule	'00 '02 '04	'06 '08 '10 '12 '	14 '16 '18 '20 '22	'24 '26 '28 '30
100 100 300 500 Load	Job # 1	Job # 2 Job # 3		Q
Required media				
Océ Tab Cards				
Océ Red Label				
Océ Black Label A3 🗁, 80 g				
Océ Green Label A4 D, 120 g	-			
1				
Required output locations				
i Finisher				
Stacker				
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🍓 System	

[34] The third job is ready for printing

The green bars indicate that the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 can print all the jobs. The printer can print unattended for 13 minutes until the list of 'Scheduled jobs' is empty.

Stop a job

Introduction

When the printer is printing a job, you can stop the printer at the following moments.

- Stop after a set
- Stop after a page
- Stop after a job.

The following table gives an overview of the stop behavior of the printer. The procedures in this section describe how to stop the printer via the operator panel.



Note: You can also stop a job by ejecting a stack of sheets from the stacker. When you press the eject button next to the stacker door 1 time, the stacker ejects the stack when a set is ready. When you press the eject button 2 times, the stacker ejects the stack as soon as possible.

The stop behavior of the printer

[14] When does the printer stop

When	Then
You press the Hold key 🗌 1 time	The printer stops when a set of the active print job is ready (in most cases within 30 seconds).
You press the Hold key \Box 2 times	The printer stops as soon as possible (after a page).
You press the 'Stop after job' button in the toolbar of the 'Jobs' view	The printer stops when the selected job is ready. The 'Jobs' view displays a horizontal red and white stop bar below the selected job. The 'Schedule' view displays a vertical stop bar behind the selected job.
The 'Check first set' setting in a 'Workflow profile' is 'On'(see 'Work with the workflow profiles' on page 121)	The printer stops each time the first set of a print job is ready. You can check the first set before you continue the print job.
The 'Confirm start of job' setting in a 'Workflow profile' is 'On'	The printer stops each time a print job is ready. You must start each job manually.



Note: When you print streaming jobs A or jobs that consist of 1 large set, you must always press the Hold key \square 2 times to stop the printer.

Stop after a set

Press the Hold key \square 1 time. The red LED of the Hold key \square starts to blink. The printer stops when a set of the active print job \square is ready.



Note: *The memory of the printer can contain up to 50 pages. Therefore, it is possible that the printer prints more than a set before the printer stops.*

Stop after a page

Press the Hold key \square 2 times. The red LED of the Hold key \square starts to blink. The printer stops as soon as possible.

Stop after a job

- **1.** In the list of 'Scheduled jobs' in the 'Jobs' view, press the job after which the printer must stop.
- 2. Press 'Stop after job'.

The printer stops as soon as the selected job has been printed. A red and white stop bar indicates that the stop-after-job function is active. Press 'Stop after job' again to remove the stop bar and continue printing.

On hold	Job # 1 Set 1 of 250	Press ⊳ to continue.		
Dobs 下 Properties Printed jobs	Stop after job Dele	te Move P	R B Ticket	Bundle
Job	Pages Sets Submitted	Duration Job	Pages Sets	Submitted Duration
Scheduled jobs		2 jobs, 1 selected.		
Job	Pages Sets Submitted	Duration		
Job #1 Prepress Department	250 Aug 20, 2007 10:14:21 AM	0:04		
Job # 2 Prepress Department	500 Aug 20, 2007 10:14:25 AM	0:04		
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🍓 System	

[35] Stop after job

The Jobs view

Introduction to the 'Jobs' view

Introduction

The 'Jobs' view enables you to manage the print jobs on the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 locally. This section describes the items of the 'Jobs' view.

Illustration

Printing		Job # Set 21	1 3 of 250			Upco	ming: Lo	ad A4 🗅 ,	tab, 80 g/m²					~~~ ~~~
Jobs	To top	5) 	p after jot		< 7		» 👔 🤄	Pro	9	Ticket	10	Bundle	D R Select	12
Printed jobs Job	3	Pages	Sets	Submitted	1 job, 0 s Duration	elected.	Waiting Job	jobs	-(1)	Pages	Sets	Submitted	1 job, 0 sel Duration	ected.
Job # 6 Prepress Departm	ent		500	Aug 20, 2007 11:13:14 AM		\bigtriangledown		Job # 5 Prepress D	epartment	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:18 AM	0:04	
Scheduled jobs	0				4 jobs, 1 s	elected.								
dob	C	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration									
Job #1 Prepress Departm	ent	4	212 / 250	Aug 20, 2007 11:10:40 AM	0:01									
Job # 2 Prepress Departm	ent	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:10:47 AM	0:04									
Job # 3 Prepress Departm	ent	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:00 AM	0:04									
Job # 4 Prepress Departm	ent	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:08 AM	0:04									
Schedule			Jobs			Tray	s		🍓 Sy	stem				
[36] The 'Jo	bs' vie	ew												

The items of the 'Jobs' view

[15] Description of the 'Jobs' view

(1 - 3)

Number	Item	Function
1	'Waiting jobs'	Display the jobs that are not yet scheduled for printing.
2	'Scheduled jobs'	Display the active print job A and the jobs that are scheduled for printing.

[15] Description of the 'Jobs' view

Number	Item	Function
3	'Printed jobs'	Display the jobs that were printed successfully. The system only moves the printed jobs to the list of 'Printed jobs' when the setting 'Job history' in the Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor is enabled.
4	'Properties' button	Check or change the properties of a job. The button is only enabled when you select 1 job.
5	'To top' button	Give priority to a scheduled job. The job is printed when the active print job b is ready (see <i>Give priority to a scheduled job' on page 72</i>). The button is only enabled when you select 1 job.
6	'Stop after job' button	Stop the printer after a selected job (see 'Stop a job' on page 62). The button is only enabled when you select 1 job.
7	'Delete' button	Delete the selected job(s) (see ' <i>Delete a job' on page 73</i>). The button is enabled when you select 1 or more jobs.
8	'Move' or 'Copy' button	 'Move' Move a job from the list of 'Waiting jobs' to the list of 'Scheduled jobs'(see 'Schedule a waiting job for printing' on page 68), or the other way round (see 'Print a scheduled job later' on page 75). The 'Move' button is only active when you work with jobs in the list of 'Scheduled jobs' or 'Waiting jobs'. 'Copy' Send a copy of a job that has been printed before to the list of 'Waiting jobs' to reprint the job (see 'Reprint a job' on page 70). The 'Copy' button is only active when you work with jobs in the list of 'Printed jobs'. The button is enabled when you select 1 or more jobs.

[15] Description of the 'Jobs' view (3 - 3)Number Item Function 9 'Proof' button Print 1 copy of a job to check whether the result of the print job meets your expectation (see '*Make a proof' on page 77*). The button is only enabled when you select 1 job. Note: The proof print is not i subtracted from the number of sets you defined for this job. 10 'Ticket' button Print an overview of the main job settings and job parameters (see 'Print the job parameters' on page 79). The button is only enabled when you select 1 job. 11 'Bundle' or 'Split' Combine a number of jobs into 1 job, for example to create a set of documents that are button required for a meeting Bundle and split jobs on page 80. 'Select' button 12 Select a number of jobs at the same time. You can use one of the following: Use 'All' to select all the jobs in the list. . Use 'None' to deselect all the jobs in the list. ■ Use 'Invert selection' to turn the selected jobs into deselected jobs, and the other way round. ■ Use 'Jobs with available media' to select all the jobs for which the media are currently available in the paper trays Print all the jobs for which the media are available on page 84. ■ Use 'Jobs with label' to select all the jobs with a certain label Print the jobs that have a label on page 85 **Note:** *The active print job is only* i selected when the printer is on hold.

Note: Whether a button is enabled depends on the number of selected jobs, the state of the jobs and the list that is active. Not all of the above settings are available for streaming jobs \mathfrak{A} .

Schedule a waiting job for printing

Introduction

When a job is sent to the printer (from a printer driver, a software application or a scanner), the job arrives in the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs'. You can set the preferred destination in the workflow profiles on the operator panel (see 'Work with the workflow profiles' on page 121).

When you choose to send the jobs to the list of 'Waiting jobs' to have full control over the order in which the jobs will be printed, you must manually move the jobs to the list of 'Scheduled jobs' to print the jobs. However, you can use the options of the 'Select' button to send a number of jobs directly to the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. This section describes how to schedule a waiting job for printing.

Illustration

Printing	Job #	4 3 of 500			Upcoming: Load A4 🗅 , 120 g/m²						a∰•		
S Jobs	Ì	N		ĸ		ধননি	1	ล		a .		fR.	A
Properties To top	Stop	o after jot	Del	lete	Me	ove	р	roof	т	icket)	Bundle	Select
Printed jobs				4 jobs, 0 s	selected.	Waiting	j jobs						2 jobs, 1 selected.
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Job				Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration
Dob # 3 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:00 AM	0:01	\bigtriangledown		Job #1 Prepress	Department		4	250	Aug 20, 2007 11:23:15 AM	0:04
Scheduled jobs				2 jobs, 0	selected.		Job # 2					Aug 20, 2007	
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration			Prepress	Department		2	500	11:23:15 AM	0:04
Job # 4 Prepress Department	2	187/ 500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:08 AM	0:03									
Job # 5 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:18 AM	0:04									
() arbedda				1_				<i>2</i> 08.	0				
Schedule	N .	Jobs			Iray	5		1534	Syster	n			

[37] Schedule a waiting job for printing

Schedule a waiting job for printing

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs', press the job you want to print.

Note: You can use the options of the 'Select' button to select a number of waiting jobs at once. You can also press a number of jobs one by one. To undo the multiple selection and only select 1 job, you must press the desired job for 2 seconds. Then only the desired job is selected.

3. Press 'Move'.

The selected job is moved to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

i

Reprint a job

Introduction

When the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 has successfully printed a job, the system can move the job to the list of 'Printed jobs'. This list can temporarily store the printed jobs. The list of 'Printed jobs' is not an archive. It is intended to enable you to reprint a job quicker and easier. Each printed jobs remains in the list of 'Printed jobs' for 24 hours. Then the job is automatically removed from the system.

When you reprint a job from the list of 'Printed jobs', the job is not moved. The original job remains in the list of 'Printed jobs'. The system only sends a copy of the job to the list of 'Waiting jobs'. You cannot send a job directly to the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. If you no longer need a job, you can delete the job from the list of 'Printed jobs'. This section describes how to reprint a job.



Note: The system only moves the printed jobs to the list of 'Printed jobs' when the setting 'Job history' in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor is enabled.

Illustration

Rea	ıdy									∎ t			°°°°
S J	§ Jobs												
Properties To top Stop after job			Del	< ete	C c) P VIII	Proof	Ticket		FL) Bundle	Select	•	
Printed	ljobs				6 jobs, 1 s	elected.	Waiting	jobs				2 jobs, 0 sel	ected.
Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration	
	Job #6 Prepress Department		500	Aug 20, 2007 11:13:14 AM				Job #1 Prepress Department	4	250	Aug 20, 2007 11:23:15 AM	0:04	
	Job #1 Prepress Department	4	250	Aug 20, 2007 11:10:40 AM	0:01			Job #2 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:23:15 AM	0:04	
	Job #2 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:10:47 AM	0:01								
ß	Job # 3 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:00 AM	0:01								
	Job # 4 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:08 AM	0.01								
	Job # 5 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:18 AM	0:01								
Job	iled jobs	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration								
\oslash	Schedule		Jobs			Trays	5	🤹 Syste	em				
[38]	Reprint a job)											

Reprint a job

- **1.** Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Printed jobs', press the job you want to reprint.
- **3.** Press 'Copy'. The system sends a copy of the job to the list of 'Waiting jobs'.
- 4. Press the job in the list of 'Waiting jobs'.
- 5. Press 'Properties' to change the settings, for example the number of prints.
- 6. Press 'Move'.

The job is moved to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

Give priority to a scheduled job

Introduction

The list of 'Scheduled jobs' contains the jobs that are scheduled for printing. The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 prints the jobs in the order in which the jobs arrive in the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. However, you can give priority to an urgent job in the list. Then that job is printed as soon as the active print job 🌇 is ready. This section describes how to give priority to a scheduled job.

Illustration

		01250			opcor	ining. Evau ~	-4 ш , tab, oo g	////-						
S Jobs	S Jobs													
Properties To top	Stop	after job	Del	< ete	الله Mo	ve	ି । Proof	Ticket	Bundle	Select				
Printed jobs				6 jobs, 0 s	selected.	Waiting jobs								
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Job		Pages	Sets Submitted	Duration				
Job #5 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 11:11:18 AM	0.01	\bigtriangledown									
Scheduled jobs				6 jobs, 1 :	selected.									
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration										
Job #1 Prepress Department	4	110/ 250	Aug 20, 2007 11:23:15 AM	0:02										
Job #2 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:02:55 PM	0:04										
Job # 3 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:02:56 PM	0:04										
Job # 4 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:02:58 PM	0:04										
Job #5 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:03:37 PM	0:04										
Job #6 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:03:39 PM	0:04										
Schedule	S J	lobs			Trays	1		System						

[39] Move a job to top

Give priority to a scheduled job

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Scheduled jobs', press the job to which you want to give priority.
- **3.** Press 'To top'. The job is moved to the position below the active print job **§**.
Delete a job

Introduction

You can delete 1 or more jobs at a time from each list in the 'Jobs' view. When you delete a job, the job is removed from the system. This section describes how to delete a job.



Note: *You can only delete the active print job* when the printer is on hold (see 'Stop a job' on page 62).

Ready						
Jobs	Stop after job	s Move	୍ଦି Proof	Ticket	Bundle	R → Select
Printed jobs		Waitin	gjobs			3 jobs, 1 selected.
Job	Pages Sets Submitted Du	uration Job		Pages Se	ets Submitted	Duration
			Job #2 Prepress Department	2	500 Aug 20, 2007 2:38:21 PM	0:04
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Du	uration	Job # 3 Prepress Department	2	500 Aug 20, 2007 2:38:33 PM	0:04
			Job #1 Prepress Department	2	250 Aug 20, 2007 2:39:52 PM	0:02
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🍓 Sy	stem		
[40] Delete a job						

Delete a job

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In one of the lists in the 'Jobs' view, press the job you want to delete.

Note: You can use the options of the 'Select' button to select a number of jobs at once. You can also press a number of jobs one by one. To undo the multiple selection and only select 1 job, you must press the desired job for 2 seconds. Then only the desired job is selected.

3. Press 'Delete'.

A dialog box will ask you to confirm that you really want to delete the selected job.

4. Press 'Yes' to remove the selected job from the list and from the system.

Print a scheduled job later

Introduction

When a job is scheduled for printing, the job is present in the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. However, for various reasons you can choose to print a job later. For example because the required media are not available or because you first want to make a proof (see '*Make a proof*' *on page 77*).

This section describes how to print a scheduled job later.

Illustration

Printing	Job # 1 Set 22	1 2 of 250			Upco	ming: Loa	d A3 🗅 , 80 g/	m²			
S Jobs											
Properties To top	Stop	after job	Del	K lete	Me	» Ne	a Proof	Ficket		E Bundle	R → Select
Printed jobs	1.2					Waiting je	obs	11-1			
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration
Scheduled jobs				3 jobs, 1	selected.						
Job	Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration							
Job #1 Prepress Department	2	221 / 250	Aug 20, 2007 2:39:52 PM	0:01							
Job # 2 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:38:21 PM	0:04							
Job # 3 Prepress Department	2	500	Aug 20, 2007 2:38:33 PM	0:04							
				_							
Schedule	Δ.	Jobs			Tray:	5	-	System			

[41] Print a scheduled job later

Print a scheduled job later

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to print later.
- [i]

Note: From the drop-down list of the 'Select' button, you can also select 'All', 'Jobs with available media' or 'Jobs with label' to select more jobs at once, except the active print job . To move the active print job . you must first press the Hold key \Box . You can also press a number of jobs one by one. To undo the multiple selection and only select 1 job, you must press the desired job for 2 seconds. Then only the desired job is selected.

3. Press 'Move'.

The job is moved to the bottom of the list of 'Waiting jobs'.

Make a proof

Introduction

You can make a proof to check whether the quality and the layout of the output meet your expectations. When you use the 'Proof' function, the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 prints 1 copy of the job. You can only make a proof for a job in the list of 'Waiting jobs'.

This section describes how to make a proof.



Note: When you make a proof, the printed set is not subtracted from the defined total number of sets for a job. For example, when you need 10 sets, the printer will still print 10 sets after you made the proof. This is different from the checking of the first set (see 'Check the first set' on page 101).

Rea	dy									Statute Land		œ∰•		
S Jo	obs													
Pro	perties	Sto	p after job	De	× lete	M	ve	P	€] roof		Ficket		Bundle	R - Select
Printed	jobs						Waiting	jobs						3 jobs, 1 selected.
Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration		Job				Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration
						\bigtriangledown		Job # 3 Prepress	Department		1	500	2006/07/17 09:30:02	0:04
Schedu	led jobs				3 jobs, 0 s	elected.								
Job		Pages	Sets	Submitted	Duration									
8	Job # 1 Prepress Department	1	91/ 1000	2006/07/17 09:29:06	0:08									
	Job # 2 Prepress Department	1	250	2006/07/17 09:29:25	0:02									
۵	Job # 3 Prepress Department	1	1	2006/07/17 09:30:50	0:01									
\odot	Schedule		Jobs			Trays	3		-	Syster	n			
[42]	Print a proof													

Make a proof

- **1.** Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs', press the job of which you want to make a proof.

Note: You can select more than 1 job at a time.

3. Press 'Proof'.

A copy of the job goes to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. The original job remains in the list of 'Waiting jobs'. You can recognize a proof by the magnifying glass on the job icon .

Print the job parameters

Introduction

You can print an overview of the job settings and the job parameters (the so-called job ticket) before you print a job. The overview can show you for example which media the job requires.

This section describes how to print the overview of the job parameters.

Illustration

Ready) & &
🛯 Jobs								
Properties To top	Stop af	er job Del	K ete	Move	ି Proof	E Ticket	E Bundle	R
Printed jobs				Waiting	jobs			3 jobs, 1 selected.
Job	Pages S	ets Submitted	Duration		Job # 3 Prepress Department	Pages	Sets Submitted 500 2006/07/17 14:57:23	0:04
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages S	ets Submitted	3 jobs, 0 sele	ected.	Job # 4 Prepress Department	1	500 2006/07/17 14:57:28	0:04
Job # 1 Prepress Department	1	399 / 2006/07/17 1500 14:56:50	0:09					
Job # 2 Prepress Department	1	500 2006/07/17 14:57:14	0:04					
Object # 4 Prepress Department	1	500 2006/07/17 15:21:24	0:04					
Schedule	🚺 Jol	os		Trays	🍓 s	ystem		

[43] Print the job parameters

Print the job parameters

- 1. Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- **2.** Press the job for which you want to print the job parameters. You can only select 1 job at a time.
- 3. Press 'Ticket'.

The job is sent to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. The job may not be immediately visible in the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

You can recognize the job by the prefix @_ in front of the job name.

The printed job ticket is sent to the system output (see '*The output locations*' on page 29).

Bundle and split jobs

Introduction

Create a bundled job

If you want to combine 2 or more documents into 1 set, for example to prepare a meeting, you can bundle jobs that are present in the list of 'Waiting jobs'. The original jobs are removed from the list. The bundled job appears at the bottom of the list of 'Waiting jobs'. The system automatically creates a name for the bundled job that is based on the name of the first job in the bundle.

The number of copies for the bundled job is initially set to 1. You can handle the bundled job like any other job. For example, you can move the job to the list of 'Scheduled jobs', edit the job, delete the job or make a proof.

Edit a bundled job

You can define the following properties for a bundled job.

- The order of the jobs in the bundle
- The number of sets
- Whether you want to check the first set of the bundled job.



Note: This section describes the above in separate procedures. However, you can always access the 'Properties' window and change 1 or more properties at the same time. You cannot change the properties of the individual jobs in the bundle. To do this, you must first split the bundled job. Then you can change the properties of each job.

Split a bundled job

In the list of 'Waiting jobs', you can split a bundled job into the original jobs. The system removes the bundled job. The individual jobs are added at the end of the list of 'Waiting jobs'.

This section describes how to create, edit and split a bundled job.

General information

- When you print a bundled job, the system prints the number of copies that you indicated for the bundled job. The number of copies of the original jobs is ignored.
- When you stop a job after a set *Stop a job on page 62*, the printing stops after 1 copy of the complete bundle.
- The jobs in a bundle are accounted separately under the account ID of the original jobs.
- You cannot combine a bundled job with another bundled job.

Note: All the jobs in the bundle must have the same output location. Otherwise, the operator panel displays a warning message. To continue, you must first split the job, then change the individual jobs and finally bundle the jobs again.

Illustration

i

Ready					***
Jobs □ □ Properties To top	Stop after job	Move F	Proof Ticket	Bundle	R .
Printed jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Duratio	Waiting jobs	Pages	3 ji Sets Submitted Do	obs, 2 selected. aration
		Job #1	s Department 2	Aug 21, 2007 9:24:09 AM	0:02
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted Duratio	n Job #2	s Department 2	500 Aug 21, 2007 9:24:16 AM	0:04
		Job # 3 Prepress	s Department 2	Aug 21, 2007 500 9:24:20 AM	0:04
		-			
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🍓 System		

[44] Create a bundled job

Create a bundled job

- **1.** From the list of 'Waiting jobs', select the jobs you want to bundle.
- You can select the jobs one by one, or use one of the options of the 'Select' button. 2. Press 'Bundle'.

The operator panel displays an overview of the bundled job.

- **3.** If required, use the keys 'Up' and 'Down' in the 'Job order' field to change the order of the jobs.
- 4. Press 'OK' to accept the job.

Illustration

Ready											~~~ (²) 1) z	***
Jobs	🛱 B	undle prop	perties									
Properties	₿	Job #1, User	Systen				Number of s	sets		1		Select
Job		Submitted Duration Label	4 Aug 21, 2007 9 0:01 (default)	31:49 AM			Check first	set		of	Ŧ	ration 0:04
Scheduled job	2	1					Media					0:01
	L	ob order					Sheets Media	A3 🗅 , 80 g/m²				
		分 Up	یل Down									
	Job	Job #1 Prepress D	epartment	Pages 2	Submitted Aug 21, 2007 9:24:09 AM							
		Job #2 Prepress D	epartment	2	Aug 21, 2007 9:24:16 AM							
										1	~	
									ок		Cancel	
Sche	dule		Jobs			Tray	s	Sys	stem			

[45] Edit a bundled job

Change the order of the jobs in a bundled job

- **1.** Select the bundled job.
- 2. Press 'Properties'.
- 3. In the 'Job order' field, select the job you want to move.
- 4. Use the keys 'Up' and 'Down' to move the job to the required position.
- 5. Press 'OK'.

Change the number of sets for a bundled job

- **1.** Select the bundled job.
- 2. Press 'Properties'.
- **3.** Press the 'Number of sets' button. A numerical keyboard appears.
- 4. Use the numerical buttons to enter the desired number of sets.



Note: *Press the arrow button <- to correct the previous entry or press 'Cancel' to close the numerical keyboard without saving the changes.*

- 5. Press 'OK'.
 - The numerical keyboard disappears.
- 6. Press 'OK'.

Check the first set of a bundled job

- **1.** Select the bundled job.
- 2. Press 'Properties'.
- **3.** Press 'Check first set' when the button states 'Off'. The text changes from 'Off' to 'On'. A check mark indicates that the checking of the first set is enabled. The printer will automatically go on hold after the first set was printed.
- 4. Press 'OK'.

Split a bundled job

- 1. Select a bundled job in the list of 'Waiting jobs'.
- 2. Press 'Split'.

The system adds the original jobs to the end of the list of 'Waiting jobs'.

Print all the jobs for which the media are available

Introduction

You can select and print the jobs for which the media are currently available in the paper trays all at once. This improves the productivity because a regular change of media types is not required. This section describes how to select the jobs for which the media are present in the paper trays.

Illustration

Ready						
Jobs	Stop after job	e Move	Proof	Ticket	Bundle	Select
Printed jobs Job	Pages Sets Sulomitted D	Duration Job) jobs	Pages Se	ts III	All
			Job #3 Prepress Department	2 4	500 ⁴	None
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted D	Duration	Job #1 Prepress Department	2 3	250 4 📉	Invert selection
			Job #2 Prepress Department	2	500 1 🔂	Jobs with available media
						Jobs with label
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	Syst	em		

[46] Select the jobs for which the media are available

Print the jobs for which the media are available

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- **2.** Press the 'Select' button.
- **3.** Press 'Jobs with available media'. The system selects and highlights the jobs for which the required media are available in the paper trays.
- Press 'Move'. The selected jobs are moved to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

Print the jobs that have a label

Introduction

A label is a name or tag that helps the operator to identify certain jobs on the operator panel. When a job is sent to the printer, a label can be added to that job. The label can be any name that helps to identify certain jobs. A label is not connected to job settings.

The label can be defined in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 printer driver, in a job ticket or via an automated workflow. For example, the label 'Customer X' can be added to jobs. Then the operator can select and print all the jobs for 'Customer X' at once. The operator can select jobs with a label in the list of 'Waiting jobs' or in the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

This section describes how to select and print jobs with a certain label.



Note: Automated workflows can be defined through the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor. You can find more information in the online help of the Settings Editor.

Illustration

Ready						
S Jobs						
Properties To top	Stop after job	e Move	Proof	Ticket	Bundle	R - Select
Printed jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted D	Wai Duration Job	iting jobs	Pages Se	ts d	All
			Job # 3 Prepress Department	2 5	500 4 1111	None
Scheduled jobs Job	Pages Sets Submitted E	Duration	Job #1 Prepress Department	2 2	250 4 📉	Invert selection
		ſ	Job #2 Prepress Department	2 5	500 4 🔂	Jobs with available media
						Jobs with label
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	🧠 s	System		
[47] Drint the job	a with a label					

[47] Print the jobs with a label

Print the jobs with a label

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- **2.** Press 'Select'. A drop-down list appears.
- **3.** Press 'Jobs with label'.

A pop-up window with an overview of the available labels appears.

4. Press the desired label.



Note: You can select more than 1 label.

5. Press 'OK'.

The pop-up window disappears.

 Press 'Move'. The selected jobs are moved to the bottom of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'.

Checking and changing the job properties

Change the media

Introduction

When a job is sent to the printer, the desired media will be indicated. However, you can replace the media by another media from the Media catalog with the same size. This section describes how to change the media for a specific job. The following 3 illustrations give an impression of the screens you will see when you change a media in the 'Properties' window.

Ready					***
S Jobs	r⊊ D	roparties			
Properties Printed jobs		Job # 1 Juser Prepress Department Pages 1 50/mitted Submitted 17-Oct-2006 11:04:48 50/mitted	Number of sets	50	job, 1 selected.
Job	ð	Duration 0:01 No operator note	Check first set	Off	nation
Scheduled job			Media Finishing	Image	
		é	Sheets Meda		
			ОК	Cancel	
Sche	edule	Jobs 🔲 Tra	ys 🦓 System		

[48] Select the media to replace

Ready												Ŷ	***
Jobs	6° P	Toperties Job # 1 User Pages Submitted Dussition	Prepress Departmen 1 17-Oct-2006 11:04:- 0-01	Chan	ige media Red Label 80 g	1					50		ob, 1 selected.
Job	Ø	No operator n	ote	i) Pro	ess OK to change	e the media into	the selected	media.			Off	1	ration 0:01
Scheduled job Job				0c A4	:é Green Label □ , 80 g				iishing	It	nage		
		e			é Black Label , 80 g é Red Label				el		٥,		
				A4	(D), 80 g			8				~	
										Ж	Canc	el	
Scho	edule		Jobs			UK	Lan	vov	ystem				

[49] Select another media

Ready										
S Jobs										
Ľ\$Ŧ	T Properties									
Properties	Job # 1 User Prepress Department Pages 1 Submitted 17/Oct-2006 11/04-48	Number of sets 50								
Job	Duration 0:01	ob, 1 selected.								
	No operator note	Check first set								
Scheduled job		Media Finishing Image								
	é	50 Ccć Black Label A4 D, 80 g								
		~								
		OK Cancel								
Sch	edule 🚺 Jobs 🔲 Tra	ys 🛞 System								
[50] Th	[50] The media is changed									

Change the media

- **1.** Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

- **4.** Press the 'Media' tab.
- Press the icon of the media you want to change (see figure 48 on page 87).
 When the Media catalog contains media with the same size, the operator panel will display a list of these media (see figure 49 on page 88).
- 6. Press the new media you want to use.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

The new media is displayed (see figure 50 on page 88).

8. Press 'OK'.

Change the number of sets

Introduction

When a job is sent to the printer, the desired number of sets will be indicated. However, you can change the number of sets on the operator panel. This section describes how to change the number of sets for a specific job.



Note: You can enter any value between 1 and 65,000 for all jobs except the active print job \square . To change the number of sets for the active print job \square , you must first press the Hold key \square 1 time. Then you can change the number of sets. You cannot define a lower value than the number of sets that has already been printed.



[51] Change the number of sets

Change the number of sets

- 1. Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

- **4.** Press the 'Number of sets' button. A numerical keyboard appears.
- 5. Use the numerical buttons to enter the desired number of sets.

Note: *Press the arrow button <- to correct the previous entry or press 'Cancel' to close the numerical keyboard without saving the changes.*

- **6.** Press 'OK'. The numerical keyboard disappears.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

i

Change the output location

Introduction

In the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor, you can set the default output location for print jobs. However, you can change the output location on the operator panel for each job individually. Depending on the configuration of your system, you can select one of the following output locations.

- 'Finisher upper output'
- 'Finisher'
- 'Stacker' or, if you have more than 1 stacker, 'Left-hand stacker', 'Middle stacker' or 'Right-hand stacker'.
- 'Stacker/stapler'
- 'Stacker/stapler upper output'
- 'External finisher'.

This section describes how to select another output location for a specific job.

i

Note: There must be a match between the selected output location and the job requirements. For example, when a job does not require staples, you can select any output location. If a job requires 1 or 2 staples, you can only select the output locations that can staple the jobs, for example 'Finisher' or 'External finisher' because the 'Stacker' cannot staple the jobs. When you make a combination that is not possible, the operator panel displays an error message.

Illustration

Ready					7 & &
🔊 Jobs	St Properties				-
Properties	Job #1 User Prepress Department	Number of sets		250	Select
Job	Submitted Aug 22, 2007 10:54:17 AM Duration 0:02 Label (default)	Check first set		Off	2007 0:02
Scheduled jobs	No note for the operator	Media	Finishing	Image	
		Juliput location		Stacker	
	é	Staples	Finisher upper output	None	
		🚮 Sort	Finisher	By set	
			Stacker		
		Offset stacking	Stacker/stapler	As in system	
			Stacker/stapler upper putput		
			External finisher	Cancel	Ī
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	Syste	m	

[52] Change the output location

Change the output location

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

- 4. Press 'Finishing'.
 - The 'Output location' button shows the currently selected output location.
- **5.** Press the 'Output location' button. A drop-down list with the available output locations appears.
- 6. Press the desired output location.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

Change the number of staples

Introduction

When a job is sent to the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250, a desired number of staples for that job can be indicated. However, you can change the number of staples on the operator panel.

This section describes how to change the number of staples for a specific job.

i

Note: There must be a match between the selected output location and the job requirements. For example, when a job does not require staples, you can select any output location. If a job requires 1 or 2 staples, you can only select the output locations that can staple the jobs, for example 'Finisher' or 'External finisher' because the 'Stacker' cannot staple the jobs. When you make a combination that is not possible, the operator panel displays an error message.



[53] Change the number of staples

Change the number of staples

- **1.** Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

i

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

4. Press 'Finishing'.

The 'Staples' button shows the currently selected number of staples.

- **5.** Press the 'Staples' button. A drop-down list appears.
- 6. Press the desired number of staples.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

Change the sorting method

Introduction

When a job is sent to the printer, the sorting method is usually indicated or defined in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor. However, you can change the sorting method on the operator panel. You can select one of the following.

- 'By set' The pages will be sorted in the order 123, 123, 123.
- 'By page'. The pages will be sorted in the order 111, 222, 333.

This section describes how to change the sorting method for a specific job.



[54] Change the sorting method

Change the sorting method

- **1.** Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

i

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

4. Press 'Finishing'.

The 'Sort' button shows the currently selected sorting method.

- **5.** Press the 'Sort' button. A drop-down list appears.
- 6. Press the desired sorting method.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

Change the type of offset stacking

Introduction

You can use the function 'Offset stacking' to create a visible distinction between sets or jobs in an output location. When 'Offset stacking' is enabled, each set or job will be stacked with an offset compared to the previous set or job. You can set the default type of offset stacking in the workflow profile on the operator panel (see 'Work with the workflow profiles' on page 121). The following table describes when you can change the type of offset stacking for specific jobs.

[16] Possibility to change the type of offset stacking per job

When	Then
The type of offset stacking is set to 'Sets (as in job)'	You can change the type of offset stacking per job via the 'Properties' window in the 'Jobs' view.
The type of offset stacking is set to 'Jobs', 'Sets (always)', 'Banners' or 'Off'	You cannot change the type of offset stacking per job. The 'Properties' window displays 'As in system'.

This section describes the following:

- The values you can select in the 'Properties' window when 'Sets (as in job)' is set in the workflow profile
- How to change the type of offset stacking per job via the 'Properties' window.

Types of offset stacking in the 'Properties' window

When 'Sets (as in job)' is set in the workflow profile, then you can select one of the following types of offset stacking.

When	Then
You select 'Off'	All the printed sets are sent to the output location in one straight stack.
You select 'Each set'	All the printed sets are sent to the output location with an offset between the sets.
You select 'As in document'	All the printed sets are sent to the output location as defined in the job ticket.

[17] Available types of offset stacking in the 'Properties' window



[55] Change the type of offset stacking

Change the type of offset stacking

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.



Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

4. Press 'Finishing'.

The 'Offset stacking' button shows the currently selected type of offset stacking.

- **5.** Press the 'Offset stacking' button. A drop-down list appears.
- 6. Press the desired type of offset stacking.
- 7. Press 'OK'.

Check the first set

Introduction

You can indicate that you want to print 1 set of a job first to check the print quality. When the print quality meets your expectations, you can continue the job.

You can use 1 of the following methods to indicate that you want to check the first set.

- Use a workflow profile where 'Check first set' is enabled (see 'Work with the workflow profiles' on page 121). Then the printer always prints 1 set before the entire job is printed. The printer goes on hold after 1 set is printed.
- Enable the 'Check first set' function in the 'Properties' option of the 'Jobs' view for a specific job only.

This section describes how to indicate that you want to check the first set for a specific job only.



Note: When you use the 'Check first set' function, the printed set is subtracted from the indicated total number of sets for a job. For example, when you need 10 sets, the printer will print only 9 more sets. This is different from the making of a proof (see 'Make a proof' on page 77).

Illustration



[56] Check the first set

Enable the checking of the first set

[i]

Note: You cannot enable the checking of the first set for the active print job \mathbb{N} or a job in the list of 'Printed jobs'.

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'Jobs' button.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.

Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

- **4.** Press 'Check first set' when the button states 'Off'. The text changes from 'Off' to 'On'. A check mark indicates that the checking of the first set is enabled. The printer will automatically go on hold after the first set is printed.
- 5. Press 'OK'.

Shift the image

Introduction

When you use pre-printed media with marked locations for specific text, for example, a misalignment of the text can occur. For example, an address is not exactly placed in the center of an address field, or an account number is not exactly placed in the appropriate box. To correct these misalignments, you can shift the image. You can shift the images on the front side and back side horizontally and vertically. This section describes how to shift the image.

Illustration

Ready				
S Jobs	T Properties			
Properties	Job # 1 User Prepress Department	Number of sets	100	iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Job	Pages 1 Submitted 20-Oct-2006 09:29:38 Duration 0:01	Check first set	off	2006 0:01
Scheduled jobs	No operator note	Media Fini	ishing Image	
		Shift front side [mm]	- 0.0	+
	é		1 - 0.0	+
	Shift back side [mm]	- 0.0	+	
			1 - 0.0	+
		L	OK Ca	ncel
Schedule	Jobs	Trays	System	

[57] Shift the image

Shift the image

- 1. Press the 'Jobs' button on the operator panel.
- 2. In the list of 'Waiting jobs' or 'Scheduled jobs', press the job you want to edit.
- 3. Press 'Properties'.



Note: You can also press the job 2 times to access the 'Properties' window. This function is comparable to double-clicking with a mouse.

- 4. Press 'Image'.
- 5. Press the or + buttons to shift the image on the front side or back side of the sheet.
- 6. Press 'OK'.

The Trays view

Introduction to the 'Trays' view

Introduction

The 'Trays' view has the following functions.

- Display the current content and filling level of the paper trays
- Open the paper trays and assign the required media for the print jobs (see 'Assign the media to a paper tray' on page 108)
- Change the media that is currently assigned to a paper tray
- Assign media to a paper tray when you already loaded the media and pressed the button for 'Not assigned' on the control panel of the paper module (see '*The paper* modules' on page 32).

This section describes the items of the 'Trays' view.



Note: The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 can have 1, 2 or 3 paper modules. When the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 has 2 or 3 paper modules, the 'Trays' view displays all the available paper modules.

Illustration

Ready		
Trays	1	
I Océ Tab Cards A4 D, cyclic (5), 80 g, punched (2) Cé Green Label A3 Cb, 120 g A3 Cb, 120 g		
3 0cé Red Label A4 (D, 80 g) 4		
Océ Black Label A4 (D), 80 g		
Schedule Jobs	Trays	🍓 System

[58] Example of a configuration with 1 paper module

The items of the 'Trays' view

[18] Description of the 'Trays' view

Number	Item	Function
1	Content of the paper trays	Indicate the current content and filling level of the paper trays. The 'Trays' view displays the parameters of the media that are currently in the paper trays. The parameters are a combination of icons and texts (see ' <i>The paper tray information</i> ').
2	'Open' button	Open the selected paper tray to load the media (see ' <i>Load the media</i> ' on page 44).
3	'Assign' button	Assign media from the media catalog (see 'Assign the media to a paper tray' on page 108).

The paper tray information

The 'Trays' view displays the following textual information for each paper tray.

- The media name, for example Océ Black Label
- The media size, for example A3 or A4

- The media weight, for example 80 g
- The media color
- The special characteristics of the media, for example 'cyclic' or 'punched'. In brackets, additional information is given about these media, for example the cycle count or the number of holes for punched media.

The 'Trays' view displays the following icons for each paper tray.

[19] The me	aning of the icons
-------------	--------------------

Icon	Description
	The paper tray is empty
	The paper tray is full
	<i>i</i> Note: Each line indicates the presence of about 100 sheets
	The paper tray is too full. Please remove sheets from the stack
	The plate inside the paper tray is down
	The paper tray is open
	The paper guides inside the paper tray do not match the selected media size. You must correct the paper guides or the selected media
or	The paper tray contains media that are fed over the long edge (LEF) or short edge (SEF). The small icons indicate A4 or A4-like media. The large icons indicate A3 or A3-like media. When you defined a color for a media, the icon can have that color
6	The paper tray is in use for one or more scheduled jobs
	The paper tray contains tab sheets
X	The paper tray contains tab sheets that must be processed as inserts
	The paper tray contains inserts
8	The paper tray contains media that are fed over the long edge (LEF)
	The paper tray contains media that are fed over the short edge (SEF)

Assign the media to a paper tray

Introduction

The 'Trays' view has several functions (see '*Introduction to the 'Trays' view' on page 105*).

This section describes how to open the paper trays and assign the media in the 'Trays' view.

Illustration

Ready		
Assign Open	Assign media Ocć Green Label A D, 80 g	
1 Océ Tab Cards A4 (D), tab, 80 g	0cé Tab Cards A C, tab, cyck (5), 80 g 0cé Red Label A4 D, 80 g	
2 Océ Green Label A4 (b), 80 g 3 0cé Red Label	Océ Premium Label A4 (b), 80 g Océ Green Label A4 (b), 120 g Océ Tab Cards	
4 0cé Black Label AS (D, 80 g	A4 (b), 160, 60 g Ocć Red Label A4 (b), 120 g Ocć Green Label A4 (b), 80 g	
Schedule Jobs	OK Cancel	ystem

[65] Change and assign media

Load and assign the media to a paper tray

- 1. On the operator panel, select the 'Trays' view.
- 2. Press the paper tray where you want to put the media, for example tray 2.
- 3. Press 'Open'.
- 4. Load the media (see 'Load the media' on page 44).
- 5. Close the paper tray.
- 6. Press 'Assign'.

A window with media names appears. The previous media in the selected paper tray is highlighted.
i

Note: The list displays all the media in the media catalog that match the position of the paper guides inside the closed paper tray. When the list is empty, the media catalog does not contain media that match the position of the paper guides.

- 7. Press the name of the loaded media, for example Océ Premium Label.
- 8. Press 'OK'.

Change the media type currently assigned

- 1. On the operator panel, select the 'Trays' view.
- 2. Select the paper tray for which you want to change the assigned media type.
- **3.** Press 'Assign'. A window with media names appears.
- [i]

Note: *The list displays all the media in the media catalog that match the current position of the paper guides inside the paper tray. When the list is empty, the media catalog does not contain media that match the position of the paper guides.*

- 4. Press the name of the new media type.
- 5. Press 'OK'.

The System view

The Printer section

Introduction to the 'Printer' section

Introduction

The 'System' view gives access to system settings, system information, media information and maintenance tasks.

This section gives an overview of the 'Printer' section in the 'System' view.

Overview of the 'Printer' section

Ready								
Printer Setup	Toner left Toner right Stapler 1 finisher	Status ① 5075 % ② 5075 % ③ 101 staples used since last refit	Task	aintenanco		Status		
Media	Stapler 2 finisher Stacker/stapler	102 staples used since last refil 222 staples used since last refil 6 On-line	Start ma Cli Cli Billing c Size Size Total:	ounters counters Normal Large	8 1-sided 0 0	2-sided 0 0	Toner counter Weight	10
			Day cou Size	Inters Normal Large	0 0	2-sided O		
Sched	ule 🚺 Jobs	🔳 Trays		🍓 Sy	stem			

[66] Overview of the 'Printer' section

The items of the 'Printer' section

[20] Description of the 'Printer' section

Num ber	Item	Function	
1	Toner level	Indicates the filling level of the left-hand toner unit (see ' <i>Check the status of the toner</i> <i>reservoirs</i> ' <i>on page 112</i>).	
2	Toner level	Indicates the filling level of the left-hand toner unit (see ' <i>Check the status of the toner</i> <i>reservoirs</i> ' <i>on page 112</i>).	
3	Stapler level	Indicates the number of staples that stapler 1 of the finisher has used since the last refill (see 'Check the status of the stapler cartridges' on page 114).	
4	Stapler level	Indicates the number of staples that stapler 2 of the finisher has used since the last refill (see 'Check the status of the stapler cartridges' on page 114).	
5	Stapler level	Indicates the number of staples that the stapler of the stacker/stapler has used since the last replacement.	
6	Status of the external finisher	Indicate whether the optional external finisher is on-line or off-line.	
7	Maintenance tasks	Indicate the suggested or required maintenance tasks.iNote: Only a trained and certified operator is allowed to perform the maintenance tasks.	
8	'Billing counters'	Indicates the total number of prints that have been made since the printer was installed (see ' <i>General counter information</i> ' on page 115). You cannot reset the billing counters.	
9	'Day counters'	Indicates the number of prints that have been made since the latest reset. You can always reset the day counters (see ' <i>Reset the day counters</i> ' on page 115).	
10	'Toner counter'	Indicates the amount of toner that has been used since the printer was installed. You cannot reset the toner counter.	

Check the status of the toner reservoirs

Introduction

The printer has 2 toner reservoirs. The toner reservoirs are located at the left-hand side and the right-hand side of the engine module (see '*Introduction to the main system components' on page 22*). You can check the status of the toner reservoirs in the dashboard (see '*The dashboard' on page 36*) and in the 'System' view. The 'System' view also displays the current filling level of each toner reservoir as a percentage. The icons in the following table indicate the status of the toner reservoirs.

This section gives an overview of the possible toner statuses. Furthermore, this section describes how to check the status.

Toner icon	Description
	The toner icon is blue. All 3 blocks of the status bar are green. The toner reservoir is filled over 75%. Do not add toner.
	The toner icon is blue. 2 Blocks of the status bar are green. The toner reservoir is filled over 50%. You can add 1 bottle of toner (see ' <i>Add toner</i> ' <i>on page 156</i>).
	The toner icon is blue. 1 Block of the status bar is green. The toner reservoir is filled over 25%. You can add 2 bottles of toner.
	The toner icon is orange. The status bar contains no more green blocks. The toner reservoir is filled less than 25%. The printer can print another 600 sheets. You must add up to 3 toner bottles as soon as possible.
	The toner icon is red. The status bar has a red frame. The toner reservoir is empty. The printing stops. You must add maximum 3 toner bottles to continue the printing.
	The toner icon is grayed out. The status of the toner reservoir is unknown. This status is only displayed when the system is initializing.

The meaning of the toner icons

[21] The toner icons

Check the status of the toner reservoirs

1. Check the toner icons in the dashboard.



Note: Follow the steps 2 and 3 to view the status of the toner reservoirs as a percentage.

- **2.** Press the 'System' button.
- **3.** Press 'Printer'.

The 'System' view displays the current filling level of the toner reservoirs as a percentage. The percentage matches the blocks that are indicated in the dashboard.

Check the status of the stapler cartridges

Introduction

The optional finisher (see '*The output locations' on page 29*) contains 2 staplers to staple your jobs. You can check the status of the stapler cartridges in the dashboard (see '*The dashboard' on page 36*) and in the 'System' view. The 'System' view also displays the number of staples that have been used since the last refill. The icons in the following table indicate the status of the stapler cartridges.

This section gives an overview of the possible stapler statuses. Furthermore, this section describes how to check the status.

The meaning of the stapler icons

Stapler icon	Description
	The stapler icon is blue. The stapler cartridges are filled.
	The stapler icon is orange. The stapler level in one of the stapler cartridges is low. The highlighted number indicates which of the stapler cartridges is almost empty (see ' <i>Finisher: Add staples' on page 158</i>).
) Z	The stapler icon is red. One of the stapler cartridges is empty. The highlighted number indicates which of the stapler cartridges is empty. The printer stops.

[22] The stapler icons

Check the status of the stapler cartridges

1. Check the stapler icon in the dashboard.



Note: Follow the steps 2 and 3 to view the number of staples that have been used since the last refill.

- 2. Press the 'System' button.
- 3. Press 'Printer'.

The 'System' view displays the status of the stapler cartridges. The 'System' view also displays the number of staples that have been used since the last refill.

Reset the day counters

Introduction

The 'Printer' section of the 'System' view displays 3 types of counters. 2 of these counters provide information about the number of sheets that have been printed. The other counter provides information about the amount of toner that has been used. This section first describes the 3 counters in the 'Printer' section. Then it is described how to reset the day counters.

General counter information

The following table describes the counters in the 'Printer' section of the 'System' view.

Type of counter	Description
'Billing counters'	The 'Billing counters' section displays the total number of prints that have been made since the printer was installed. You cannot reset the billing counters.
'Day counters'	The 'Day counters' section displays the number of prints that have been made since the counter was last reset to 0. You can, for example, reset the day counters at the beginning of a working day or before you start a new job for a particular customer.
'Toner counter'	The 'Toner counter' section displays the amount of toner that has been used since the printer was installed. You cannot reset the toner counter.

The 'Billing counters' and the 'Day counters' provide information about the number of 1-sided and 2-sided prints that have been made on standard-size and large media. The length of the media determines whether a media is standard size or large. Media with a length of less than 390 mm (15.35") are referred to and counted as standard-size media. Media with a length of 390 mm (15.35") or more are referred to and counted as large media.

The operator panel displays the media icon (or) as a small icon for standard-size media. For large media, the media icon is big. The media icon is used in various places on the operator panel, for example in the 'Counters' section, in the 'Trays' view and in the job information.

Illustration

Ready									880 880
	di Sup	plies	Chabar	ull M	laintenar	nce			
Printer		Toner left	50 75 %	1 dbK			D.d.	us	
-4		Toner right	50 75 %						
setup	-	Stapler 1	101 staples used since last refill						
Media		Stapler 2	102 staples used since last refill	Start m	aintenance				4
	œ₿→	External finisher	On-line	uff C	ounters				
				Billing	ounters	Television of Station of		Toner co	unter
				Size		1-sided	2-sided	Weight	
					Normal	100,258	50,129	.8%	8.8 kg
					Large	50,129	25,064		
				Total:		200,	.516		
				Day co	unters				
				Size		1-sided	2-sided		
					Normal	250	125		
					Large	125	62		
				Reset o	lay counters				000000
Sched	Schedule Jobs Trays System								

[76] Reset the day counters

Reset the day counters

- **1.** Press the 'System' button on the operator panel.
- 2. Press 'Printer'.
- **3.** Press the 'Reset day counters' button in the 'Day counters' section. A dialog box will ask you to confirm that you really want to reset the day counters.
- **4.** Press 'Yes' to reset the day counters to 0.

Find the meter readings

Introduction

The 'Printer' section of the 'System' view displays 3 types of counters.

- The billing counters provide information about the number of sheets that have been printed since the printer was installed. You cannot reset the billing counters.
- The day counters provide information about the number of prints since the last reset. You do not need the day counters for the meter reading. The day counters are only intended for your own convenience.
- The toner counter provides information about the amount of toner that has been used since the printer was installed. You cannot reset the toner counter.

This section describes how to find the billing counters and the toner counter. For meter reading, Océ needs the values of these counters.

Ready						7 9 28 28
	d Supplies		d Maintenanc	е		
	Item	Status	Task		Status	8
Printer	Toner left	50 75 %				
-43	Toner right	50 75 %				
Setup	Stapler 1 finisher	101 staples used since last refill				
Media	Stapler 2 finisher	102 staples used since last refill	Start maintenance			4
	Stacker/stapler	222 staples used since last refill	d Counters			
	Euternal Guisbar	On line	Billing counters		1.00.000	Toner counter
		GIPHID	Size	1-sided	2-sided	Weight
			Normal	0	0	දුම් 0 kg
			Large	0	0	
			Total:		0	
			Total: Day counters	3	0	
			Total: Day counters Size	1-sided	0 2-sided	
			Total: Day counters Size Normal	1-sided 0	0 2-sided 0	
			Total: Day counters Size Normal Large	1-sided 0	0 2-sided 0 0	
			Total: Day counters Size Hormal Large Reset day counters	1-sided 0	0 2-sided 0 0	
Sched	ule 🚺 Jobs	Trays	Total: Day counters Size Informat Large Reset day counters System Syste	1-sided 0 0	0 2-sided 0	

Illustration

Find the meter readings

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.
- Press 'Printer'. You can find the required meter readings on the right-hand side of the screen.

The Setup section

Introduction to the 'Setup' section

Introduction

The 'System' view provides access to system settings, system information, media information and maintenance tasks.

This section provides an overview of the 'Setup' section in the 'System' view.

Overview of the 'Setup' section

Ready							~~ (°	8
	Korkflow							
Printer	Receive	Print		Outp	put	1		
Setup			2			000		1
Media	New jobs to Scheduled jobs	Confirm start of job	Check first set	Next tray when	n tray is full	Sets offset stacked	Link	output locations
	Workflow profile	2	 Custom					
	d User interface			🖷 Adva	nced			
	Language	3	English (US)	Advanced me	dia settings		6	None
	Warning time	4	10 minutes	Intermediate	check print		7	Ĩ
	Shut down system	5						
G Sched	lule J	obs	🗐 Trays	*	🔅 Syster	m		

[78] Overview of the 'Setup' section

The items of the 'Setup' section

[24] Description of the 'Setup' section

Num ber	Item	Function
1	Summary of the defined workflow settings	Display the main settings of the current workflow profile. These settings are read-only.
2	'Workflow profile' button	Define a workflow profile that matches your needs (see ' <i>Work with the workflow profiles</i> ' on page 121).
3	'Language' button	Change the language of the operator panel (see ' <i>Change the language</i> ' <i>on page 126</i>).
4	'Warning time' button	Define at which point you want the system to warn you about an action that is required soon, for example 10 minutes in advance (see ' <i>Change</i> <i>the warning time</i> ' <i>on page 128</i>).
5	'Shut down system' button	Shut down the system in a controlled way (see 'Shut down the printer' on page 18).
6	'Advanced media settings' button	Define a number of special media-related settings (see ' <i>Change the advanced media settings</i> ' on page 131).
7	'Intermediate check print' button	Print a test sheet of a running job to check the quality (see ' <i>Make an intermediate check print</i> ' <i>on page 135</i>).

Work with the workflow profiles

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 is used in different printing environments. Each environment requires other settings to optimize the workflow or to meet your personal workflow preferences. The printer contains a number of default workflow profiles to help you optimize your workflow. The default workflow profiles are combinations of frequently used settings for print jobs ('Receive', 'Print' and 'Output'). However, the workflow profiles cannot cover all the possible workflows you may need. Therefore, you can also define the settings individually (custom workflow).

This section makes recommendations about when to use which workflow profile. Furthermore, this section describes the settings and the effects of the settings.



Note: The 'Workflow profile' button in the 'Setup' section of the 'System' view displays the name of the selected workflow profile. When you customized the settings of a workflow profile, the button displays the text 'Custom'.

The workflow profiles

Ready						~ (*) & &
Printer	v &	Vorkflow				_
	۲IJ,	Profile	Receive	Print	output	
Setup	Nev	Standard	Destination of new job	Confirm start of job	Next output tray	ob utput locations
Media	Work	Job by job		Check first set	Offset stacking	
	-	Check and print		As in job	Link output locations	ob)
	Langi Warr	Manual planning			M off	None
	Shut					
					OK Can	
Sched	lule	Jobs	Trays	🇠 s	ystem	

[79] The workflow profiles screen

The use of the default workflow profiles

The following table makes recommendations about when to use which default workflow profile.

	[25] \	When t	to use	which	workflow
--	--------	--------	--------	-------	----------

Profile	When to use
'Standard'	You need a productive workflow but you still want to have sufficient control over the jobs.
'Job by job'	You want to start the jobs one by one. Each time a job has been printed, the printer goes on hold. You must always press the Release key \triangleright to start the next job.
'Check and print'	You want to check the quality and layout of each first set of a job before the remaining sets will be printed.
'Manual planning'	The jobs are sent to the printer in a random order. You can manually define the most productive order in which the printer will print the jobs.
'Unattended'	You want to continue printing while you are absent, for example after working hours. Then the printer will print the scheduled jobs, provided that all the required media, supplies and output locations are available.

The default settings of each workflow profile

The following table gives an overview of the default 'Receive' and 'Print' settings of each workflow profile.

Workflow profile	'Receive' settings	'Print' settings	
	'Destination of new job'	'Confirm start of job'	'Check first set'
'Standard'	'Scheduled jobs'	'Off'	'As in job'
'Job by job'	'As in job'	'On'	'As in job'
'Check and print'	'Scheduled jobs'	'Off'	'On'
'Manual planning'	'Waiting jobs'	'Off'	'As in job'
'Unattended'	'As in job'	'Off'	'Off'

[26] The 'Receive' and 'Print' settings

The following table gives an overview of the default 'Output' settings of each workflow profile.

Workflow profile	'Output' settings		
	'Next output tray'	'Offset stacking'	'Link output locations'
'Standard'	'After each job'	'Sets (as in job)'	'Off'
'Job by job'	'After each job'	'Sets (as in job)'	'Off'
'Check and print'	'After each job'	'Sets (as in job)'	'Off'
'Manual planning'	'After each job'	'Sets (as in job)'	'Off'
'Unattended'	'When tray is full'	'Banners'	'On'

[27] The 'Output' settings

Values and effects of the settings

The following table describes the effects of the various values of the settings.

[28] Values and effects of the setting
--

```
(1 – 3)
```

Setting	Values	Effect
'Destination of new job'	'Scheduled jobs'	 The jobs are immediately sent to the list of 'Scheduled jobs'. The printer will print the jobs in the ripped order. You can do the following to rearrange the order in which the jobs will be printed. Move jobs to the list of 'Waiting jobs' or Use 'To top' to move a job to the top of the list of 'Scheduled jobs'(see '<i>Give priority to a scheduled job' on page 72</i>).
	'Waiting jobs'	You can manually define the order in which the jobs will be printed.
	'As in job'	The submitted jobs go to the destination that is indicated in the job ticket.
'Check first set'	'On'	The printer goes on hold after the first set of a job is printed. You can check the quality and layout of the first set before the printer prints the remaining sets.
	'Off'	The printer will print the whole job on end. The printer does not stop after the first set.
	'As in job'	The printer will print the jobs as indicated in the job ticket.

28] Values and effects of the settings			
Setting	Values	Effect	
'Confirm start of job'	'On'	The printer always stops before the next scheduled job. You must press the Release key ▷ to start each job.	
	'Off'	The printer prints the scheduled jobs one after the other. The printer does not stop before the next scheduled job, unless there is a reason to stop. For example when a media is not available.	
'Next output tray'	'After each job'	Each job is sent to the next available output tray. In this context, the second stack of the stacker is also defined as an output tray.	
	'When tray is full'	All the jobs are stacked until an output tray is full. When an output tray is full, the next jobs are sent to the next output tray.	
'Offset stacking'	'Jobs'	Each printed job that is delivered to an output location is stacked on top of the previous printed job with an offset. This helps you to identify the various jobs.	
	'Sets (always)'	Each printed set that is delivered to an output location is stacked on top of the previous set with an offset. This helps you to identify the various sets.	
	'Sets (as in job)'	Each printed set is delivered to the output location as indicated in the job ticket. Therefore, the sets can be stacked in one straight line or with an offset.	
	'Banners'	Each banner page of a job is delivered to the output location with an offset. This helps you to identify the separate jobs. The jobs themselves are stacked in one straight line.	
	'Off'	All the printed jobs or sets are stacked in one straight line. There is no offset between the jobs or sets.	

[28] Values and effects of the settin		ngs (3 – 3)
Setting	Values	Effect
'Link output locations'	'On'	The available output locations are linked. When an output location is full, the Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160/6200/6250 automatically continues to fill the next available output locations. For example, when the stacker is full, the next job or set is sent to the finisher, if available. The system will only fill the next output location when that output location supports the job requirements. For example, when a job requires staples and the finisher is full, the remaining sets are not sent to the stacker, because the stacker cannot staple.
	'Off'	The available output locations are not linked. When an output location is full, the printer stops. You must first empty the output location before the printer will continue printing. 'Off' is useful when you have many mixed jobs with a diversity of job parameters.

Change the language

Introduction

This section describes how to change the language of the operator panel.

Change the language

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.
- 2. Press the 'Setup' button.

Ready				
l	d Workflow			
Printer	Receive Print		Output	
Setup		3	8	-
Media	New jobs to Scheduled jobs Confirm start of	job Check first set	Next tray when tray is full Sets offset sta	acked Link output locations
	Workflow profile	Custom		
	dig User interface		d Advanced	
	Language	English (US)	Advanced media settings	None
	Warning time	10 minutes	Intermediate check print	
	Shut down system			
G Sched	ule 🚺 Jobs	🔳 Trays	🍓 System	

[80] Change the language

3. Press the 'Language' button in the 'User interface' section. An overview of the available languages appears.

Ready						
	🖷 Workflow					
Printer	Receive			2.0.4	1	
Setup		Česky	Français	Português		
	New jobs in Scheduled j	Dansk	Italiano	Русский	n tray is full	Jobs offset stacked
Media	Workflow profile	Deutsch	Magyar	Suomi		
	user interface	English (UK)	Nederlands	Svenska		
	Language	English (US)	Norsk	10 中文		None
	Warning time	5 Español	Polski	日本語		Ĩ
	Shut down system		ок	Cancel		
() Sched	ule	Jobs	Trays	System		

[81] Overview of the available languages

- 4. Select your language, for example 'Norsk'.
- 5. Press 'OK'.

The language is changed.

Change the warning time

Introduction

When operator interaction is required now or soon, the dashboard (see '*The dashboard*' on page 36) can display a warning message. The message informs you about a required upcoming action, for example load a required media type or empty an output location.

You can define how long in advance the warning message is displayed. By factory default, the function 'Warning in advance' is enabled and set to 10 minutes. Then the dashboard starts to display the warning 10 minutes before an action becomes inevitable. If you do not respond to the warning message, the printer will stop. Depending on the urgency of the warning message, the vertical bar in the dashboard is orange or red.

This section describes how to change the warning time. This section also describes how to disable the function 'Warning in advance', in case you do not want to use the warning function.

Note: The operator attention light (see 'The operator attention light' on page 27) is linked to the status of the printer. For example, when the dashboard displays an orange warning, the orange light of the operator attention light also lights up.

Set the warning time

i

- 1. On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.
- 2. Press 'Setup'.
- **3.** Press the 'Warning time' button in the 'User interface' section. The following dialog box appears.

Ready				
Printer	Workflow		7	
setup	Receive Pri	nt	Output	-83
Media	New jobs to Scheduled jobs Confirm s	Warning time	Next tray when tray is full Sets offset stack	ved Link output locations
	Workflow profile	Warning in advance	On	
	🖷 User interface	minutes -	ad the set of the set	
	Language	ОК	Cancel	None
	Warning time	10 minutes	Intermediate check print	Ĩ
	Shut down system			
Sched	lule Jobs	Trays	System	

[82] Set the warning time

- Press the or + button to decrease or increase the warning time. You can set a time from 1 - 60 minutes.
- 5. Press 'OK'.

Disable the warning time

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.
- 2. Press 'Setup'.
- **3.** Press the 'Warning time' button in the 'User interface' section. A dialog box appears. When the 'Warning in advance' function is enabled, the 'Warning in advance' button displays a check mark and the status 'On'.
- Press the 'Warning in advance' button. The check mark disappears. The status 'On' changes into 'Off'.

Ready				
	Section Workflow			
Printer	Receive Pri	nt	Output	
Setup	i i			
	New jobs to Scheduled jobs Confirm s	tert of tob Check first set Warning time	Next tray when tray is full Sets offs	et stacked Link output locations
meula	Workflow profile	Warning in advance	off	
	user interface	Minutes -	10 + ed	
	Language	ок	Cancel	None
	Warning time	10 minutes	Intermediate check print	Ĩ
	Shut down system			
Sched	lule 🚺 Jobs	Trays	System	

[83] Disable the warning time

5. Press 'OK'.

Change the advanced media settings

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 has various advanced media settings that can help you solve possible problems when you print on certain special media. When all the advanced media settings have their default value, the button for 'Advanced media settings' displays the word 'None'. After you changed one or more settings, this button shows one or more of the following icons: $\Im \square \square$. This means that 'Double-sheet detection' is 'Off', the 'Enhanced media mode' is 'On' and the 'Media quality factor' is set to the indicated value respectively.

This section describes when it is recommended to change the advanced media settings. Furthermore, this section describes how to change the settings.

When to do

'Double-sheet detection'

Double-sheet detection warns you that 2 or more sheets have been separated from the media stack in a paper tray at the same time. However, it is not always convenient when the double-sheet detection is enabled, for example when you use transparent media with a cover sheet. Then you can set the 'Double-sheet detection' to 'Off'. By factory default, 'Double-sheet detection' is 'On'.

'Enhanced media mode'

Glossy media can cause a collating or stapling error in the finisher. You can set the 'Enhanced media mode' to 'On' to prevent the error. This will influence the speed of the printer. By factory default, the 'Enhanced media mode' is 'Off'. When you set the 'Enhanced media mode' to 'On' and the printer status is 'Printing...', the dashboard displays a message that the enhanced media mode is enabled. The 'Enhanced media mode' is only available on printers that are equipped with the optional finisher (see '*The output locations' on page 29*).

'Media quality factor'

When you use fiber-rich media, for example recycled media, the printer can become polluted quicker than with other media. When you discover that the print quality becomes less good, you can set a lower value for the 'Media quality factor'. You can select '600 (default)', '400' or '200'. When you select '400' or '200', the printer is automatically cleaned more often. The number indicates the number of prints after which the printer is cleaned. The cleaning takes only a couple of seconds. Please refer to the chapter Troubleshooting for more information *Overview of the possible toner problems when using fiber-rich media on page 166*.

'Enhanced cleaning mode'

When you set the 'Media quality factor' to '200' and the print quality of the fiber-rich media is still not optimal, then you can enable the 'Enhanced cleaning mode'. Please refer to the chapter Troubleshooting for more information

Overview of the possible toner problems when using fiber-rich media on page 166.

Before you begin

1. On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.



[84] Access the advanced media settings

- 2. Press 'Setup'.
- 3. Press the 'Advanced media settings' button in the 'Advanced' section.
- 4. Enter the maintenance PIN.

i

Note: The operator panel will only ask you to enter the maintenance PIN when a maintenance PIN is defined in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor.

5. Press 'Start' to access the 'Advanced media settings'.

Illustration

Ready					
Printer	Workflow				
	Receive	Print	5	Output	
Setup	New jobs in Scheduled jobs	Advanced media settings	2	ay when tray is full	Jobs offset stacked
Media	Workflow profile	Double-sheet detection	On On		
	🕲 User interface	Enhanced media mode	600 (default)		
	Language	0	K Cancel	-	None
	Warning time Shut down system			J	
Sched	ule 🚺 Jobs	Trays	Sys	item	

[85] Change the advanced media settings

Disable the double-sheet detection

1. Press the 'Double-sheet detection' button. The text on the button changes from 'On' to 'Off'.



Note: Each time you press the button, the setting changes from 'On' to 'Off' and the other way round.

2. Press 'OK'.

Enable the enhanced media mode



Attention: This setting is only available on printers that are equipped with the optional finisher.

 Press the 'Enhanced media mode' button. The text on the button changes from 'Off' to 'On'.



Note: *Each time you press the button, the setting changes from 'Off' to 'On' and the other way round.*

2. Press 'OK'.

Change the media quality factor

- Press the 'Media quality factor' button. A drop-down list appears.
- **2.** Press the desired value.
- 3. Press 'OK'.

Enable the enhanced cleaning mode

 Press the 'Enhanced cleaning mode' button. The text on the button changes from 'Off' to 'On'.

i

Note: *Each time you press the button, the setting changes from 'Off' to 'On' and the other way round.*

2. Press 'OK'.

Make an intermediate check print

Introduction

The printer has a function that enables you to make a check print while a job is printed. This function is called the intermediate check print. When you use this function, the printer prints a copy of the sheet that is printed at the moment you press the 'Intermediate check print' button. You can use this sheet to check whether the quality and consistency of the prints still meet your requirements. This section describes how to make an intermediate check print.

Note: You can also press the 'Intermediate check print' button when a job has not yet started. As soon as you press the Release key \triangleright , the first sheet of the job will be printed.

Ready **Workflow** Printer Receive Print Output 3 Next tray after each job Sets offset stacked Media Workflow profile Custom d User interface ا Advanced English (US) Advanced media settings None Language Ô 10 minutes Intermediate check print Warning time \bigcirc Shut down system 🖂 Schedule Jobs Trays 🍓 System [86] Make an intermediate check print

Illustration

Make an intermediate check print

- **1.** On the operator panel, press the 'System' button.
- 2. Press 'Setup'.
- **3.** Press the 'Intermediate check print' button in the 'Advanced' section. The intermediate check print is sent to the system output (see '*The output locations*' *on page 29*).

The Media section

Introduction to the 'Media' section

Introduction

The 'System' view gives access to system settings, system information, media information and maintenance tasks.

This section gives an overview of the 'Media' section in the 'System' view.

Overview of the 'Media' section

Ready				
	Media catalogue		Temporary media	
Printer	Registration		To catalogue	
	Media		Media	
Setup	Océ Tab Cards		My Letter Letter 8.5x11, 80 g	
	Océ Red Label A4, 80 g			
Media	Océ Black Label A3, 80 g			
	Océ Premium Label A4, 80 g			
	Océ Green Label A4, 120 g			
	My Custom 20x30 (200 × 300 mm), 80 g			
Schee	lule 🚺 Jobs	Trays	System	

[87] Overview of the 'Media' section

The items of the 'Media' section

[29] Description of the 'Media' section

Num ber	Item	Function		
1	List of all the media that are available in the 'Media catalog'.	Display the current content of the 'Media catalog'(see ' <i>Introduction to the 'Trays' view' on page 105</i>).		
2	List of temporary media	Display the temporary media that are currently available on the system (see ' <i>What are temporary media</i> ' on page 140).		
3	'To catalog' button	Add temporary media to the media catalog (see 'Add temporary media to the 'Media catalog'' on page 141).		
4	'Registration' button	Print test sheets and perform the registration for individual media. You can do a media registration for standard-size media (see 'Perform a media registration for standard-size media' on page 143) and large media (see 'Perform a media registration for large media' on page 148).		

Introduction to the media handling

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 supports a wide range of media, including tabs and inserts. The supported media sizes range from 203 mm x 203 mm (minimum) to 320 mm x 488 mm (maximum). The supported media weights range from 50 - 300 g/m² for Océ recommended media (60 - 200 g/m² for other media).

This section describes the following.

- Media handling in general
- The 'Media catalog'
- Temporary media.



Note: You can place all the supported media in any paper tray.

General introduction to the media handling

All the print jobs require media that you can assign to the paper trays via the operator panel (see '*Example of a workflow*' on page 46). The print jobs can require media that are included in the 'Media catalog'. However, the print jobs can also require media that are not included in the 'Media catalog'. These media become temporary media on the system.

What is the 'Media catalog'

The 'Media catalog' is a list of predefined media and media attributes which you can define in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor application on the controller. The use of the 'Media catalog' is only recommended, not compulsory.

When you use the 'Media catalog', the operator panel, the printer drivers and other applications all display the same list of predefined media. The operator panel and the printer driver automatically retrieve and show the latest version of the 'Media catalog'.

Note: *Refer to the Online Help of the Océ VarioPrint*[®] 6160/6200/6250 *Settings Editor for information about the media attributes that you can define. The Online Help also describes how to change the 'Media catalog' (add, edit or delete media).*

What are temporary media

You can also use many other media that are not included in the 'Media catalog'. These media become temporary media. You can look up the currently used temporary media in the 'Media' section of the 'System' view. Furthermore, you can assign the temporary media to a paper tray.

The temporary media remain available on the system until:

- No more waiting jobs need this media type
- No more scheduled jobs need this media type
- No more printed jobs need this media type
- This media type is no longer available in the paper trays.

When you plan to use these media more often, you can add these temporary media to the 'Media catalog' (see 'Add temporary media to the 'Media catalog' on page 141).

Add temporary media to the 'Media catalog'

Introduction

When a job is submitted that requires media that are not included in the 'Media catalog', these media become temporary media. The operator panel displays the temporary media in the following places.

- In the list of 'Required media' in the 'Schedule' view, when the job is scheduled for printing.
- In the list of 'Temporary media' in the 'Media' tab of the 'System' view.

When you plan to use a temporary media more often, you can add the media to the 'Media catalog'.

This section describes how to add temporary media to the 'Media catalog'.

Illustration

On hold	Job # 1 Set 70 of 250	Press ▷ to contin		
Printer	Media catalogue	T	emporary media	
Setup	Media Océ Tab Cards A4, tab, cyclic (5), 80 g, punched (2)		ede Océ Tab Cards A4, cyclic (5), 80 g, punched (2)	
Media	Océ Red Label		Océ Black Label	
	A4, 80 g Océ Green Label A4, 120 g		A3, 120 g	
	Normal A3 A3, 80 g My Custom 20x30			
	(200 × 300 mm), 80 g			
		~		
Sched	lule Jobs	Trays	System	

[88] Temporary media

Add temporary media to the 'Media catalog'

- **1.** Press the 'System' button on the operator panel.
- 2. Press 'Media'. The names of the temporary media are displayed in the 'Temporary media' section.
- 3. Select the media you want to add to the 'Media catalog'.
- **4.** Press 'To catalog'. The media is added to the 'Media catalog'.



Note: If required, you can edit the attributes of the media in the 'Media catalog' on the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor.

Perform a media registration for standard-size media

Introduction

The different properties of media can influence the alignment of images when the media are printed. To ensure a correct alignment, you can perform a media registration for each individual media in the 'Media catalog'. The following values will be measured.

- The Z-position of side 1
- The X-length of side 1
- The Z-position of side 2
- The X-position of side 1
- The X-position of side 2.

For each media registration, a paper ruler and 3 test sheets will be printed. Depending on the regional setting in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor, the paper ruler is printed on A4 or Letter. You can use the first printed sheet to create the paper ruler. However, you can also use a universal ruler of your own. The ruler must be long enough to carry out the measurements. You must carry out each measurement on all 3 test sheets. The system calculates the average value of the measurements.

This section describes how to perform a media registration for standard-size media (media with a length of less than 390 mm / 15.35").



Note: *It is recommended to perform the media registration when the list of 'Scheduled jobs' is empty.*

Before you begin

- 1. Press the 'System' button on the operator panel.
- 2. Press 'Media'.
- **3.** Select a media from the 'Media catalog' for which you want to perform a media registration.
- **4.** Press 'Registration'. When a maintenance PIN is defined in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor, a numerical keyboard appears.
- 5. Enter the maintenance PIN to start the wizard.



Note: *The following procedures often refer to the start of the ruler. The start of the ruler is the line where the shaft of the arrow starts.*

Print the test sheets and create the ruler

- Read the introduction on the screen. Then press 'Next'. The printed test sheets go to the system output.
- **2.** Take the first printed sheet.
- **3.** Fold the sheet along the line 'B-H' on side 1.



[89] Fold the sheet to create a ruler

This is your ruler.



[90] The ruler

Adjust the Z-position of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'B' of the test sheet.


[91] Align the ruler with 'B'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- **4.** Enter the value.
- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- 6. Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.
- **8.** Repeat the steps 2 4.

Adjust the X-length of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- **2.** Put the ruler along the line 'D-F' of the test sheet.
- **3.** Align the start of the ruler with point 'D' of the test sheet.



[92] Align the ruler with 'D"

- 4. Read the value at point 'F'.
- **5.** Enter the value.
- **6.** Take the second test sheet.
- **7.** Repeat the steps 2 5.
- **8.** Take the third test sheet.
- **9.** Repeat the steps 2 5.

Adjust the Z-position of side 2

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'K' of the test sheet.



[93] Align the ruler with 'K'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- 4. Enter the value.
- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- **6.** Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.
- **8.** Repeat the steps 2 4.

[i]

Note: *After step 8, the printer prints another 3 test sheets to measure the X-position of side 1 and side 2.*

Adjust the X-position of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Put the ruler along the line 'D-F' of the test sheet.
- 3. Align the start of the ruler with the left edge of the test sheet.



[94] Align the ruler with the edge of the sheet

- 4. Read the value at point 'D'.
- 5. Enter the value.

- 6. Take the second test sheet.
- 7. Repeat the steps 2 5.
- **8.** Take the third test sheet.
- **9.** Repeat the steps 2 5.

Adjust the X-position of side 2

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'N' of the test sheet.



[95] Align the ruler with 'N'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- 4. Enter the value.
- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- 6. Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.
- **8.** Repeat the steps 2 4.

Result

A pop-up message appears. The message asks you whether you want to print an extra test sheet to verify the result of the registration. You can do one of the following.

- Press 'Yes' if you want to print an extra test sheet to verify the result.
 Wait for the sheet and check the result. Another pop-up message appears. Press 'Yes' if the registration is correct. Press 'No' if the registration is not correct. Then the registration procedure will start again.
- Press 'No' if you do not want to print an extra test sheet. The registration procedure will be finished.

Perform a media registration for large media

Introduction

The different properties of media can influence the alignment of images when the media are printed. To ensure a correct alignment, you can perform a media registration for each individual media in the 'Media catalog'. The following values will be measured.

- The Z-position of side 1
- The X-length of side 1
- The Z-position of side 2
- The X-position of side 1
- The X-position of side 2.

For each media registration, a paper ruler and 3 test sheets will be printed. Depending on the regional setting in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor, the paper ruler is printed on A4 or Letter. You can use the first printed sheet to create the paper ruler. However, you can also use a universal ruler of your own. The ruler must be long enough to carry out the measurements. You must carry out each measurement on all 3 test sheets. The system calculates the average value of the measurements.

This section describes how to perform a media registration for large media (media with a length of 390 mm / 15.35" or more).

i

Note: *It is recommended to perform the media registration when the list of 'Scheduled jobs' is empty.*

Before you begin

- 1. Press the 'System' button on the operator panel.
- 2. Press 'Media'.
- **3.** Select a media from the 'Media catalog' for which you want to perform a media registration.
- Press 'Registration'. When a maintenance PIN is defined in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor, a numerical keyboard appears.
- 5. Enter the maintenance PIN to start the wizard.



Note: *The following procedures often refer to the start of the ruler. The start of the ruler is the line where the shaft of the arrow starts.*

Print the test sheets and create the ruler

- Read the introduction on the screen. Then press 'Next'. The printed test sheets go to the system output.
- **2.** Take the first printed sheet.
- **3.** Fold the sheet along the line 'B-H' on side 1.



[96] Fold the sheet to create a ruler

This is your ruler.



[97] The ruler

Adjust the Z-position of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'B' of the test sheet.



[98] Align the ruler with 'B'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- 4. Enter the value.
- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- **6.** Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.
- **8.** Repeat the steps 2 4.

Adjust the X-length of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'D' and read the value at point 'E'.



[99] Align the ruler with 'D' and read the value at 'E'

- 3. Open the 'Calculator assistant', enter the 'DE' value and press 'OK'.
- 4. Align the start of the ruler with point 'E' and read the value at point 'F'.



[100] Align the ruler with 'E' and read the value at 'F'

- 5. Open the 'Calculator assistant', enter the 'EF' value and press 'OK'.
- 6. Take the second test sheet.
- 7. Repeat the steps 2 5.
- **8.** Take the third test sheet.
- **9.** Repeat the steps 2 5.

Adjust the Z-position of side 2

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'K' of the test sheet.



[101] Align the ruler with 'K'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- 4. Enter the value.

i

- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- 6. Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.
- **8.** Repeat the steps 2 4.



Adjust the X-position of side 1

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- **2.** Put the ruler along the line 'D-F' of the test sheet.
- 3. Align the start of the ruler with the left edge of the test sheet.



[102] Align the ruler with the edge of the sheet

- 4. Read the value at point 'D'.
- **5.** Enter the value.
- **6.** Take the second test sheet.
- **7.** Repeat the steps 2 5.
- **8.** Take the third test sheet.
- 9. Repeat the steps 2 5.

Adjust the X-position of side 2

- **1.** Take the first test sheet.
- 2. Align the start of the ruler with point 'N' of the test sheet.



[103] Align the ruler with 'N'

- **3.** Read the value at the edge of the test sheet.
- 4. Enter the value.
- **5.** Take the second test sheet.
- 6. Repeat the steps 2 4.
- **7.** Take the third test sheet.

8. Repeat the steps 2 - 4.

Result

A pop-up message appears. The message asks you whether you want to print an extra test sheet to verify the result of the registration. You can do one of the following.

- Press 'Yes' if you want to print an extra test sheet to verify the result.
 Wait for the sheet and check the result. Another pop-up message appears. Press 'Yes' if the registration is correct. Press 'No' if the registration is not correct. Then the registration procedure will start again.
- Press 'No' if you do not want to print an extra test sheet. The registration procedure will be finished.

Chapter 5 Keeping the printer running



Add toner

Introduction

The Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 has 2 toner reservoirs. This section describes how to add toner.

When to do

When a toner reservoir is empty or almost empty (see '*Check the status of the toner reservoirs*' on page 112).



Attention: Only use the Océ VarioPrint 6000 toner.



Attention: Never add more than 3 bottles at a time. The status bars of the toner indicators indicate the amount of bottles you are allowed to fill.

Attention: The printer must be switched on to add the toner. You can add toner while the printer is busy.

Attention: If you spill toner, refer to the Safety data sheets in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Safety manual for information about the removal and cleaning.

Add toner

- **1.** Shake the toner bottle well (see the instructions on the bottle).
- **2.** Remove the screw cap from the bottle.

Attention: Do not remove the seal from the bottle.

3. Open the front door of the toner reservoir you want to fill.



[104] Open the front doors

- 4. Open the lid of the toner reservoir.
- 5. Put the toner bottle into the opening of the toner reservoir.

Note: *The toner bottle only fits one way.*

6. When the toner bottle is empty, carefully tilt the toner bottle into the horizontal position.

Make sure that the opening of the toner bottle remains over the opening of the toner reservoir.

- 7. Rotate the toner bottle a half turn to the right to remove the residual toner.
- **8.** Remove the toner bottle.

i

- **9.** Close the lid of the toner reservoir.
- **10.** Close the front door of the toner reservoir.

Finisher: Add staples

Introduction

The optional finisher (see '*The output locations' on page 29*) on top of the stacker can staple your jobs. The finisher contains 2 staplers. Both staplers are located inside the finisher. Stapler 1 is located at the back side. Stapler 2 is located at the front side. This section describes how to add staples.

When to do

When a stapler cartridge is empty or almost empty (see '*Check the status of the stapler cartridges*' on page 114).

Note: Only use staples of type S25.

Get access to the staplers

- 1. Open the front door of the finisher.
- **2.** Open top cover E1.
- 3. Open cover E5.
- 4. Lock cover E5 with the locking mechanism E6.
- **5.** If required, slide stapler 1 to the center. This makes the access to the cartridge holder in stapler 1 easier.

Add staples

- 1. Remove the cartridge holder from the stapler.
- **2.** Press the striped release buttons at both sides of the cartridge holder to unlock the lower cover.



[105] Press the 2 release buttons simultaneously

The lower cover opens.



[106] The lower cover opens

3. Remove the empty stapler cartridge in the opposite direction of the arrow.



[107] Remove the stapler cartridge

4. Slide a new stapler cartridge into the cartridge holder, in the direction of the arrow.



[108] Place a new stapler cartridge

5. Push the stapler cartridge into the cartridge holder until the cartridge clicks into place.



[109] Firmly push the stapler cartridge into the holder

6. Remove the paper ribbon that secures the staples in the stapler cartridge.



[110] Remove the paper ribbon

- **7.** Close the lower cover.
- **8.** Place the cartridge holder in the stapler.

Close the doors and covers

- **1.** Hold cover E5 while you unlock E6.
- **2.** Close cover E5.
- **3.** Close top cover E1.
- 4. Close the front door of the finisher.

Stacker/stapler: Replace the stapler cartridge

Introduction

The optional stacker/stapler *The output locations on page 29* can staple your jobs. This section describes how to replace the stapler cartridge.

Replace the stapler cartridge

- **1.** Open the front side of the stacker/stapler.
- 2. Pull the metal staple unit that contains the stapler cartridge towards you.
- **3.** Push and hold the little amber lever to the left to unlock the staple unit.
- **4.** Pull the white, right-hand side of the staple unit towards you, at an angle of 90 degrees.
- **5.** Hold the little metal ridge at the top of the staple unit to prevent that the staple unit slides to the front.
- 6. Take the stapler cartridge from the holder and insert a new stapler cartridge.
- 7. Push the little amber lever to the left to move the staple unit up again.
- 8. Close the front side of the stacker/stapler.

Troubleshooting

Introduction

The main types of possible errors are the following.

- Errors that relate to the printer
- Errors that relate to the jobs
- Toner problems that relate to the use of fiber-rich media.

This section gives an overview of the possible errors and the solutions to these errors.

i

Note: Only operators who received the Océ VarioPrint® 6160/6200/6250 maintenance training are allowed to replace or clean parts and solve paper jams in the process units.

Overview of the possible printer errors

[30] Handle the printer errors

(1 - 2)**Additional information** Error Solution Follow the instructions Paper jam After you solved the error, the printer on the operator panel. starts from the point where the printing stopped due to the error. Please check for double prints. Follow the instructions Software error A message on the operator panel will indicate that you must restart the printer. on the operator panel. Service Follow the instructions A message on the operator panel will indicate that you must call an Océ required on the operator panel. service technician. Follow the instructions The maintenance wizard appears. You Maintenance required on the operator panel. need the maintenance PIN to access the maintenance mode. The machine is automatically switched off. **Note:** Only trained 1 operators are allowed to

perform maintenance tasks.

[30] Handle the printer errors		(2 – 2)
Error	Solution	Additional information
Unit reconditioning	Follow the instructions on the operator panel.	After an error was solved, the printer checks if the print job can continue from the point where the printing stopped. When you use cyclic media, you must probably remove a couple of sheets.
The system cannot determine if the output is complete	Follow the instructions on the operator panel and check the output.	The system can sometimes not determine if the output is complete. Then you must check the output. Press the 'OK' button when the output is complete.

Overview of the possible job errors

[31] Handle the job errors

Error	Solution	Additional information
The required supplies are not available	Add the required supplies (media, toner and staples) before the printer stops printing.	The dashboard helps you to determine when the supplies are required.
The defined combination of job settings is not possible	 The controller corrects the settings. You must define a correct combination of job settings in the 'Properties' section of the 'Jobs' view on the operator panel. 	 The solution depends on the place where the job settings are defined. When the job settings are defined in an application or printer driver, the controller automatically corrects the settings. When you define the job settings on the operator panel, the operator panel displays a message that the defined combination is not possible. The 'OK' button is disabled.

Overview of the possible toner problems when using fiber-rich media

Toner problem	Solution
Several toner pollutions on the sheet	 Reduce the 'Media quality factor' from 600 to 400 or 200 <i>Change the media quality factor on page 134</i>. When the print quality is still not optimal, you can enable the 'Enhanced cleaning mode' <i>Enable the enhanced cleaning mode on page 134</i>.
Toner pollution along the edge of the sheet (2-3 mm)	 Keep the 'Media quality factor' at 600. Enable the 'Enhanced cleaning mode'<i>Enable</i> the enhanced cleaning mode on page 134. <i>i</i> Note: When the peripheral pollution mainly occurs at 1 side of the sheet, it is advised to rotate the media in the paper tray by 180 degrees.

Toner problem	Solution	
A combination of the above pollutions	 Enable the 'Enhanced cleaning mode'<i>Enable the enhanced cleaning mode on page 134</i>. When the print quality is still not optimal, you can reduce the 'Media quality factor' from 600 to 400 or 200 <i>Change the media quality factor on page 134</i>. 	
Toner pollution on mixed jobs with local low and high toner coverage	 Reduce the 'Media quality factor' from 600 to 400 or 200 <i>Change the media quality factor on page 134</i>. When the print quality at a 'Media quality factor' of 200 is still not optimal, you can enable the 'Enhanced cleaning mode'<i>Enable the enhanced cleaning mode on page 134</i>. 	

Appendix A Miscellaneous



Product specifications



Note: The media specifications in the following table are based on plain paper of 80 g/m^2 or 20 lb bond.

Overview of the main product specifications

[33] Product specifications

(1 - 3)

Item	Specification
Technology	Océ Gemini Instant Duplex technology
Print speed (2-sided)	Océ VarioPrint [®] 6160: 160 images/minute (A4/Letter) 83 images/minute (A3/Ledger)
	Océ VarioPrint [®] 6200:
	 200 images/minute (A4/Letter) 106 images/minute (A3/Ledger)
	Océ VarioPrint [®] 6250: 250 images/minute (A4/Letter) 132 images/minute (A3/Ledger)
	<i>i</i> Note: For 1-sided printing, the print speed of A4 or Letter like media is 125 images/minute for all machine types.
Supported media sizes	 Minimum 8 x 8 inch Maximum 12.5 x 19.2 inch
Supported media weights	 33 - 202 lb. bond for Océ recommended media 40 - 135 lb. bond for other media
Printable area	Long edge: maximum 19.1 inches Short edge: maximum 12.5 inches
Active registration	<.02 inches
Input capacity per paper module	 Normal trays 1 and 2: 600 sheets each Bulk trays 3 and 4: 1,700 sheets each

3] Product specifications (2	
Item	Specification
Output capacity per output location	 Stacker: 6,000 sheets in 2 stacks of 3,000 sheets each Finisher: Top tray: 900 sheets Middle tray: 1,000 sheets each Lower tray: 1,800 sheets. Upper output: 500 sheets Stacker/stapler: Output tray: 2,000 sheets Upper output: 250 sheets
Supported media sizes per output location	 Stacker: All media sizes between 8 x 8 inch and 12.5 x 19.2 inches Finisher: Long edge: 10.8 - 12.04 inches Short edge: 8.18 - 8.66 inches Stacker/stapler, output tray (stapled sheets): Long edge: 203 mm - 488 mm Short edge: 203 mm - 297 mm Stacker/stapler, output tray (unstapled sheets): Long edge: 203 mm - 488 mm Short edge: 203 mm - 488 mm Short edge: 203 mm - 320 mm Stacker/stapler, upper output: Long edge: 178 mm - 488 mm Short edge: 203 mm - 320 mm
Stapling capacity	 Finisher: 100 sheets Stacker/stapler: 80 sheets. You can set a value from 30 - 80 in the Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 Settings Editor
Toner	Océ VarioPrint 6000 toner
Resolution	 1200 dpi 141 lpi
Warm-up time	< 12 minutes
Network connectivity	10/100 Mbit and 1 Gbit Ethernet
Network protocols	TCP/IPIPXSMB

Item	Specification
Higher level protocols	 LPR/LPD for job submission Socket printing SNMP
Supported PDLs	 Adobe[®] PostScript[®] 3[™] / streaming PostScript[®] PCL 6 (combines PCL5e and PCL XL) PDF 1.5 Xerox[®] PPP support
Supported applications	 Océ VarioPrint[®] 6160/6200/6250 printer driver Océ PRISMAprepare Océ PRISMAaccess Océ PRISMAproduction Océ DPlink emulation of Xerox DocuTech[™] 61xx (Xerox[®] DigiPath[®] 1.2, 2.0, 2.1, 3.x and 4.x, and Xerox[®] FreeFlow[™] 2.x)

Reader's comment sheet

Questions

Have you found this manual to be accurate? O Yes O No Were you able to operate the product, after reading this manual? O Yes O No Does this manual provide sufficient background information? O Yes O No Is the format of this manual convenient in size, readability and arrangement (page layout, chapter order, etc.)? O Yes O No Could you find the information you were looking for? **O** Always O Most of the times **O** Sometimes O Not at all What did you use to find the required information? O Table of contents O Index Are you satisfied with this manual? O Yes O No Thank you for evaluating this manual. If you have other comments or concerns, please explain or suggest improvements overleaf or on a separate sheet. **Comments:**

Date:

This reader's comment sheet is completed by: (If you prefer to remain unknown, please do fill in your occupation)

Name:

Occupation:

Company:

Phone:

Address:

City:

Country:

Please return this sheet to:

Océ-Technologies B.V. For the attention of ITC User Documentation. P.O. Box 101, 5900 MA Venlo The Netherlands

Send your comments by E-mail to: itc-userdoc@oce.com

For the addresses of local Océ organisations see: http://www.oce.com

Addresses of local Océ organisations

Océ-Österreich GmbH
Postfach 95
1233 Vienna
Austria
http://www.oce.at/
Océ-Brasil Comércio e Indústria Ltda.
Av. das Nações Unidas, 11.857
Brooklin Novo
São Paulo-SP 04578-000
Brasil
http://www.oce-brasil.com.br/
Océ Office Equipment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Xu Mu Cheng
Chaoyang District
Beijing 100028
China
http://www.oce.com.cn/
Océ-Danmark a/s
Vallensbækvej 45
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A.
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/ Océ-Hong Kong and China head office
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/ Océ-Hong Kong and China head office 12/F 1202 The Lee Gardens
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/ Océ-Hong Kong and China head office 12/F 1202 The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/ Océ-Hong Kong and China head office 12/F 1202 The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay
Vallensbækvej 45 2605 Brøndby Denmark http://www.oce.dk/ Océ-France S.A. 32, Avenue du Pavé Neuf 93161 Noisy-le-grand, Cedex France http://www.oce.fr/ Océ-Hong Kong and China head office 12/F 1202 The Lee Gardens 33 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay Hong Kong

Océ-Hungaria Kft. 1241 Budapest Pf.: 237 Hungary http://www.oce.hu/	Océ-Ireland Ltd. 3006 Lake Drive Citywest Business Campus Saggart Co. Dublin Ireland http://www.oce.ie/
Océ-Italia S.p.A. Strada Padana Superiore 2/B 20063 Cernusco sul Naviglio (MI) Italia http://www.oce.it/	Oce Japan Corporation 3-25-1, Nishi Shinbashi Minato-Ku Tokyo 105-0003 Japan http://www.ocejapan.co.jp/
Océ-Belgium S.A. Rue Astrid 2/A 1143 Luxembourg -Belair http://www.oce.lu/	Océ Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. #3.01, Level 3, Wisma Academy Lot 4A, Jalan 19/1 46300 Petaling Jaya Selangor Darul Ehsan Malaysia http://www.ocemal.com.my/
Océ-Mexico S.A. de C.V. Prolongación Reforma 1236, 4to Piso Col. Santa Fé, Del. Cuajimalpa C.P. 05348 México, D.F. México http://www.oceusa.com/	Océ-Norge A.S. Postboks 4434 Nydalen Gjerdrums vei 8 0403 Oslo Norway http://www.oce.no/
Océ-Poland Ltd. Sp.z o.o. ul. Bitwy Warszawskiej 1920 r. nr. 7 02-366 Warszawa Poland http://www.oce.com.pl/	Océ-Lima Mayer, S.A. Av. José Gomes Ferreira, 11 Piso 2 - Miraflores 1497-139 Algés Portugal http://www.oce.pt/
Océ Singapore Pte Ltd. 190 MacPherson Road #03-00 Wisma Gulab Singapore 348548	Océ Printing Systems (PTY) Ltd. P.O.Box 629 Rivonia 2128 South Africa

	-
Océ España SA	Océ-Svenska AB
Business Park Mas Blau	Sollentunavägen 84
Osona, 2 08820 El Prat de Llobregat	191 27 Sollentuna
Barcelona	Sweden
Spain	http://www.oce.se/
http://www.oce.es/	
Océ-Schweiz AG	Océ (Thailand) Ltd.
Sägereistrasse 10	B.B. Building 16/Floor
CH8152 Glattbrugg	54 Asoke Road
Schweiz	Sukhumvit 21
http://www.oce.ch/	Bangkok 10110
	Thailand
Océ-Nederland B.V.	Océ (UK) Limited
P.O.Box 800	Océ House
5201 AV 's-Hertogenbosch	Chatham Way
The Netherlands	Brentwood, Essex CM14 4DZ
http://www.oce.nl/	United Kingdom
	http://www.oce.co.uk/
Océ North America Inc.	
5450 North Cumberland Avenue	
Chicago, IL 60656	
USA	
http://www.oceusa.com/	
	1

Note: *The web site http://www.oce.com gives the current addresses of the local Océ organizations and distributors.*



i

Note: The addresses of local Océ organizations for information about the Wide Format Printing Systems and the Production Printing Systems can be different from the addresses above. Refer to the web site http://www.oce.com for the addresses you need.

Index

A Add

Add	
Toner	156
Add staples	
Finisher	158
Stacker/stapler	163
Add temporary media to the Media catalog	141
Add toner	156
Assign media to paper tray	108
Available documentation	12

В

Billing counters
Bundle your jobs
Bundled job
Change the job order
Change the number of sets
Check the first set 83
Split

C Change

Change
Check first set 101
Image shift 103
Language 126
Media
Number of sets
Number of staples
Output location
Sorting method
Type of offset stacking
Warning time
Check
Stapler cartridges 114
Toner level 112
Check first set 101
Clean the operator panel 24
Content of the manuals 12
Counters
Create a bundled job

D

Dashboard	36
Day counters 1	15
Delete a job	73
Double-sheet detection	31
Disable	33
Enable	33

Ε

F

I

Image shift			•		•	•	•	•	 •	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	103
Intermediate	chec	ck	pr	int							•					•			135

J Job

Change number of sets
Change the media 87
Change the number of staples
Change the output location
Change the sorting method
Change the type of offset stacking
Check the first set 101

Index

Delete
Give priority
Make a proof
Print later
Print the job parameters
Reprint
Schedule
Shift the image103
To top
Job ticket
Jobs view
Overview

L

-																								
Large media																						1	1.	5
Load the media	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	44	1

Μ

Make a proof
Media
Icons
Information 106
Large
Standard115
Media catalog
Media handling
Description
Media quality factor
Media registration
Large media148
Standard-size media143
Meter readings118

Ν

Number of sets	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		9()
----------------	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	--	----	---

0

Ρ

Paper module
Control panel
Green check mark
LEDs
Not assigned button
Red arrows
Paper tray icons
Power modes
Power switch
Print
Job parameters
Job settings
Print a scheduled job later
Print all jobs with available media
Print the jobs with a label
Printer
Shut down
Sleep mode
Turn on
Wake up
Priority for a job
Product specifications170

R

Replace stapler cartridge of stacker/stapler 16	3
Reprint a job7	0
Reset day counters11	6

S

Schedule a job
Schedule view
Introduction
Jobs pane
Media toolbar41
Output locations pane42
Required media pane
Streaming jobs
Zoom control
Shut-down procedure18
Sorting method96
Split a bundled job
Index

Eject a stack62Eject button62Standard media115Stapler icons114Staples114Finisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a jobAfter a job64Stop behavior62Stop after a set62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a set63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22Stacker/stapler22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia sectionMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Stacker
Eject button62Standard media115Stapler icons114Staples114Finisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a jobAfter a job64Stop behavior62Stop after a set62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a set63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Eject a stack
Standard media115Stapler icons114Staples114Finisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a job64After a job62Stop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a set63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Stacker/stapler22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Eject button
Stapler icons114StaplesFinisher158Finisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a job64Stop behaviorStop after a job62Stop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a JobAfter a page63After a set63As soon as possible63System componentsEngine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Standard media 115
StaplesFinisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a job64Stop behaviorStop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job64After a page63After a set63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia sectionMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Stapler icons 114
Finisher158Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a jobAfter a job64Stop behavior62Stop after a set62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a JobAfter a pageAfter a set63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia sectionMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Staples
Stacker/stapler163Stop a jobAfter a job64Stop behavior62Stop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a JobAfter a pageAfter a set63After a set63After a set63System components22Finisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia sectionMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Finisher 158
Stop a jobAfter a job64Stop behaviorStop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a JobAfter a page63After a set63After a set63As soon as possible63System components22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia sectionMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Stacker/stapler 163
After a job64Stop behavior62Stop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a page63After a set63After a set63System components63Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker22System view137Media section110Setup section119	Stop a job
Stop behaviorStop after a jobStop after a setStop as soon as possibleStop as soon as possibleAfter a pageAfter a setAfter a setAfter a setAfter a setAfter a setAs soon as possibleAs soon as possibleSystem componentsEngine modulePaper module22Operator attention light22Paper module22StackerStacker22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia section110Setup section119	After a job 64
Stop after a job62Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a page63After a set63As soon as possible63System components63Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Stop behavior
Stop after a set62Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a Job63After a page63After a set63As soon as possible63System components63Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	Stop after a job
Stop as soon as possible62Stopping a JobAfter a page63After a set63As soon as possible63System components22Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System view137Media section110Setup section119	Stop after a set
Stopping a JobAfter a pageAfter a setAfter a setAs soon as possibleSystem componentsEngine modulePinisher22Operator attention light22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia section110Setup section119	Stop as soon as possible
After a page63After a set63After a set63As soon as possible63System components22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	Stopping a Job
After a set63As soon as possible63System components22Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	After a page 63
As soon as possible63System components22Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	After a set 63
System componentsEngine moduleFinisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker/stapler22System viewMedia section110Setup section119	As soon as possible
Engine module22Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	System components
Finisher22Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	Engine module
Operator attention light22Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Finisher
Operator panel22Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Operator attention light 22
Paper module22Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Operator panel
Roll feeder22Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view22Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	Paper module
Stacker22Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	Roll feeder 22
Stacker/stapler22System view137Printer section110Setup section119	Stacker
System viewMedia section137Printer section110Setup section119	Stacker/stapler 22
Media section137Printer section110Setup section119	System view
Printer section	Media section 137
Setup section	Printer section
	Setup section 119

т

Temporary media
Ticket
Toner
Toner counter
Toner icons
Toner indicator
Status bar 156
Toner icon 156
Toner problems on fiber-rich media 164
Trademarks
Trays view
Overview 105
Troubleshooting

w

Warning time

Disable 129
Set 128
Workflow
Example 46
Print a job 46
Workflow profiles
Check and print
Function 121
Job by job 122
Manual planning 122
Standard 122
Unattended 122

Index